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NIXI Overview
NIXl is a not for profit organization set up under section 25 of the Companies Act, 1956
(now section 8 under Companies Act, 2013) for peering of ISPs among themselves and
routing the domestic traffic within the country. The initial funding towards Infrastructure
was from Depariment of Information Technology. NIX| is performing the following three
activities.
« Internet Exchange
* _IN Registry and Internationalized Domain Names (IDNs)
+ Natjonal Internel Registry (NIR)

Internet Exchange: Eight Internet Exchange Nodes are functional at Delhi (Noida),
Mumbai, Chennai, Kolkata, Hyderabad, Bengaluru, Ahmedabad and Guwahati. The
Internet Exchange nodes have ensured peering of ISPs among themselves for routing
domestic Internet traffic within India, resulting in better quality of service (reduced
latency, reduced bandwidth charges for I1SPs) saving on international bandwidth.
Presently, 64 ISPs with 123 connections are connected with the various nodes of NIXI.
The aggregated maximum traffic exchanged at all the nodes is 156 Gbps as on 08"
August, 2019.

IN Registry: .IN Registry functions with primary responsibility for managing Country
Code Top Level Domains (ccTLDs). Registration of .IN domain has crossed the 2.04
million mark in 8" August 2019. Presently, 129 Registrars have been accredited to offer
IN domain name registration worldwide to customers. It has helped in proliferation of
web hosting and promotion of Internet usage in the country.

-Bharat IDN in Indian languages:
HRe domain name in Devenagari script was successfully launched on 27" August
2014 by Hon'ble Minister of Communications & Information Technology, and Minister for

Law & Justice, Mr. Ravi Shankar Prasad. The Devenagari script covers Hindi. Dogri,
Bodo, Konkani, Maithili, Marathi Nepali and Sindhi Language.
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This will increase the penetration of the Internet through use of local languages and

local content.

The availability of .Bharat IDN in Gujarati, Bengali, Manipuri in Bengali script, Punjabi,
Tamil, Telugu & Urdu languages started from 3rd August, 2015.

NIX| has sent an application to Internet Corporation for Assigned Names and Numbers
(ICANN) and the same has been delegated for all the remaining Indian languages i e
Assamese, Kannada, Oriya, Malayalam, Santali, Sanskrit, Sindhi. Kashmiri.

The API (Application Programming Interface) of 08 languages ( ie Assamese,
Kannada, Kashmiri, Malayalam, Odia (Oriya). Sanskrit, Santali and Sindhi) is under
process of integration in Registry systems.

National Internet Registry (NIR) Coordinates Internet Protocol address space (both
IPv4 & |Pv6) allocations and other Internet resource management functions at a
national level with in the country. Earlier NIR was recognized by APNIC (Asia Pacific
Network Information Centre) which is a Regional Internet Registry

Since its launch in 2012, NIR has registered impressive growth. the number of affiliates
registered are 2775 as on 08" August, 2019,
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the 16" Annual General Meeting of the members of

"REGISTRY

the Company will be held as under:

Day : Friday

Date : 20" December, 2019

Time : 4:00 p.m

Venue : Ministry of Communications and Information Technology, Conference
Room 1007, Electronics Niketan, 6, CGO Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi —
110003

To transact the following business:

1) To receive, consider & adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31,
2019 (including the statement of Income and Expenditure and all the
necessary documents required by law to be annexed to the Balance sheset)
and the Report of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

SPECIAL BUSINESS
2) To conduct the Election of Directors among the Ordinary Members of the

Company and declaration of the result.

To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the
following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"‘RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of section 180 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act. 2013, and article 17b of
Articles of Association of the Company, the company be and is hereby
authorizes the Ordinary members of the Company to elect seven Directors
among themselves whose term shall be two years upto the date of AGM to be
held on or before Sept 20217

3) Ratification of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors regarding the
joining/ leaving of the members of the Company during the year

National Internet Exchange of India
Regd. Off.: 6C, 60, BE, Hansalaya Bullding
15, Barakhamba Road, New. Belhi-110001 4
Tel.: +91-11-48202000, Fax: +91-11-48202013
CIN-UT28000L 2003NPL 120998 !
Werw.nixlin,d  wawaworegistny.in,  waw isinn in ll\)
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To consider, and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the

following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution,

‘Resolved that the resolution passed by the Board of Directors as per Article |1.
1. of table H of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Article 2 (b) and
(e) of the Articles of Association of the Company, regarding joining/leaving of
the members of the Company during the year, be and is hereby ratified "

‘Resolved further that any Directors of the Company, be and is hereby
authorized to sign/digitally sign all the documents/forms for filing the same with
the ROC as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013."

Date: 20" November, 2019 By Order of the Board of Directors
For National Internet Exchange of India

NS

(Sanjay Goel)
Director
DIN:08023127

Registered Office:

Flat No. 6C, 6D & 6E, 8" Floor,

Hansalya building, 15,

Barakhamba Road,

New Delhi-110001

Notes:-

a) The relative explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the business under item no. 2 to 3 is
annexed hereto.

B) A member shall not be entitied to appoint any other person as his proxy
unless such other person is also a member of such company,

5M.
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¢) The instrument appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be
deposited at the Company's Registered Office, duly completed and signed, not
less than 48 hrs before the time for holding the meeting.

d) Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts, are
requested to write to the Company at an early date, so as to enable the
Management to keep the information ready at the meeting

e) In the 15" AGM held on December 27, 2018 the members approved the
appointment of M/s S.8 Kothari Mehta & Co., Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for & period of 2 years from
the conclusion of that AGM until the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
of the Company to be held in 2020. The requirement to place the matter
relating to ratification of appointment of auditors by Members at every AGM
has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect
from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for ratification
of appointment of statutory auditors at this AGM.

f) The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2018-18 is being sent
by electronic mode as well as physical copies to those Members whose email
Id & addresses are registered with the Company

g) Member must bring the attendance slip with proof documents as stated in
attendance slip.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

As required by section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, the following
explanatory statement set out all material facts relating to the business
mentioned under item no. 2 to 3 of the accompanying Notice dated 20"
November, 2019,

Item no. 2
Article 17b of the Articles of Association provides that the Ordinary members
of the Company will elect Seven Directors among themselves.

Accordingly, as per article 17b and section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the list of the final candidates who will contest the election of the Directors and
the ballot papers will be dispatched as per the schedule of election

On the basis of the voting, result will be declared and new elected directars
will be appointed for the period specified in the article 17d.

Therefore, the Board of Directors recommend passing of the Resolution as set
out in item No. 2 of the Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company or
their relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financial or otherwise. in
the said resolution.

Item No. 3

The Board is authorized to increase the number of Members of the Company
as per Article Il. 1. of table H of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Article 2 (b) and (e) of the Articles of Association of the Company. Accordingly,
the Board of Directors have approved the joining/leaving of the members of
the Company during the year,
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Board of Directors recommend passing of the Resolution as set out in item No
3 of the Notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company or
their relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in
the said resolution.

Date: 20" November, 2019 By Order of the Board of Directors
For National Internet Exchange of India

oo

(Sanjay GT:LH
Director
DIN:08023127

Registered Office:

Flat No. 6C, 8D & BE, 8" Floor,

Hansalya building, 15, Barakhamba Road,

New Delhi-110001
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To
The Membears
The Directors are pleased to present the 168" Annual Report on the business and

DIRECTORS' REPORT

operations of the Company together with the Audited Accounts for the year ending
March 31, 2018.

FINANCIAL RESULTS (Rs. in lacs)
Year Ended
2018-2019 = 2017-2018 |
'INCOME l
- Membership Fees 0.71 0.64
- Registration Charges (.IN) 5349.95 | 5496.67
- Connectivity Charges (1X) 36576 35094
- Data transfer Differential (net) 15505 11362
- Affiliation Fees 1240.32 816 34
- Other income | 264.01 16.21
~ Interest eamned 1923 61 | 1252.28
Total Income (A) 9303.01 8046.7
EXPENDITURE
- Technical & Operating Expenses 1870.29 1520.91
- Establishment 203,06 206.66
- Administrative and Promotional Expenses 38544 364.73
- Depraciation 28.76 48 .57
Total Expenditure (B) 248858 214087
'Surplus prior to appropriation 6814.43 5905.83
(C)=(A) - (B) |
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 587 357
(D) |
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 6817.29 5908.39
(C)+(D)

National Internet Exchange of India M
Regd. Off.: 8C, 6D, 8E, Hansalaya Bullding,
15, Barakhamba Road, New Dethi-110001 g
Tel  +81-11-48202000, Fax: +81-11-48202013
CIN-UT28000L 2003INPL 1 20958 :
WAVWOOIXLIN,  wewwLregistryin,  wawirine in
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During the financial year, the operational revenue has gone up from Rs.

7115.38 and made a net comprehensive income of Rs. 6817 .29 lacs (Previous Year Rs.
5909.39 lacs) after consideration of interest income and other Misc income of
Rs.2187 62 lacs (Previous year Rs. 1269.69 lacs). The surplus includes Rs. 461.84 lacs
from exchange operation, Rs 5238 28 lacs from Registry operations and Rs. 1105.10
lacs from the activity of National Information Registry (NIR). The total allocation to
marketing fund 617 57(previous year Rs. 568.49 lacs and utilization from marketing
fund during the year is Rs.68.22 lacs. The accumulation to market fund Reserve
account stands at Rs.1488.36 lacs on 31.03.2019. This represents the unutiized
balance of Rs. 736.53 lacs at the close of the agreement on December 31, 2012, which
is pending for settlement with the technical service provider. The matter is to be taken in
this Board Meeting in a separate agenda. The reserve funds have reached the level of
Rs. 34504.50 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 28304 77 lacs) excluding marketing reserve fund.

OUTLOOK FOR THE YEAR 2018-20:
« To increase the guantum of traffic exchange from the present 153 Gbps to
approx. 200Gbps.
« |ncrease in no. of Affiliates joining IRINN from 2778 to 2800 approx
« Reaching 2.2 millions IN domain registration by 2020

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the year 2018-18
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF
FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE STATEMENTS RELATE AND
THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

There were no material changas during the year, affecting the financial position of the
Company

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS IF ANY
No significant material order was passed by the regulators dunng the year

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURE/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

There are no Subsidiary, Joint Venture or Asscciate companies

National Internet Exchange of India
Regd. Off.: 6C 6D 8E Hansalaya Building
15, Barakhamba Rogd New Dalk- 11000 I.
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DEPQSITS:
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The Company has neither invited nor accepted any deposits from the public during the

year under report.

AUDIT REPORT.

The Statutory Auditors have not reported any Incident of fraud.

The observations of the Auditors have been suitably dealt with in the schedules and
notes to the accounts.

Auditor's Qualification: NIL

STATUTORY AUDITORS:

In the 15" AGM held on December 27, 2018 the members approved the appointment of
Mis S.S.Kothari Mehta & Co.. Chartered Accountants. as Statutory Auditors of the
Company to hold office for a period of 2 years from the conclusion of that AGM until the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in 2020. The
requirement to place the matter relating to ratification of appointment of auditors by
Members at every AGM has been done away by the Companies (Amendment) Act,
2017 with effect from May 7, 2018, Accordingly, no resolution is being proposed for
ratification of appointment of statutery auditors at the 167 AGM.

DIRECTORS:
Shri Sanjy Goel was appointed as an Additional (Co-opted) Director of the company

w.ef 12/09/2018 He was appointed as Co-opted Director in the 15" AGM held on
2712/2018.

Shri Sanjay Bahl was reappointed as a Co-opted Director in the 15" AGM held on
27112/2018.

Shri Sanjay Kumar Rakesh retired from the post of Co-opted Directarship wef
27112/2018

The nomination of Ms. Anuradha Mitra from the post of Nominee Director of the
Company was withdrawn w e f 29.03.2018 on account of her repatriation to her parent
cadre. Smt. Kiran Soni Gupta was appointed as a Nominee Director of the Company

w.ef22052018.
National Internet Exchange of India }3/
Regd. Off.: 6C, 60 6E. Hansalaya Bullding
5. Barakhambis Road. New Dilhi-110001
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Hri ABRay Raran®kar vacated the office of Nominee Directorship of the

29.03.2018.

REGISTRY

The Board placed on record its appreciation for the contribution made by Shri Sanjay

Kumar Rakesh, Ms. Anuradha Mitra and Shn Abhay Karandikar during the tenure of

their directorship.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified under section 164(2) of the

Companies Act, 2013.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS HELD DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2018-19:

A} Board Meetings:

S.No. | Date of Board " Total number of Directors | No_ of Directors attending
meeting on the date of meeting the Meeting
1 10/04/2018 15 12
27/089/2018 16 10
03/12/2018 18 11
3 29/03/2019 14 12

B) Committee meetings:

i) Audit Committee

S No. | Date of meeting | Total Members on the date | No. of Members attending
of meeting the Meeting

1 14/09/18 4 3

2 27/0319 3 3 :

i) CSR Committee.

S.No. | Date of meeting Total Members on the date | No. of Members attending
‘ of meeting the Meeting |
1 20/11/18 E - 4 |

iii) Corporate Governance Committee:

S.No. | Date of meseting | Total Members on the date | No. of Members attending |
of meeting the Meeting
E 25/02/19 5 1 3 ' i
|i§ﬂgE of India
RE‘QH Df! : -18 [I-l: HE:. ¥ IF‘ll'l: -‘|-|.-l E.: i g .
5. Barakhamba Road New Delli-110001 |
1 __:_:L;-|.:_.'|-:_l|l F 3k +01 1'__1ﬁ.,|....||_ 13 ﬁf"E “ll
CIN-U720000L2003NPL 120880 \
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C) Attendance of Directors

'S.N | Name of Director No. of Board % of [No. of | No. of Committee
o. Meetings atten Commit | Meetings attend
Held |Attended | danc teesin | Held | Aftended  ance
durin |(Personally e which during (Personally
g or through member  tenure or through |
tenur |video | video
a i:anf&rﬁnca] conference) .
1 Shri Ajay Prakash 4 | 4 100 |- - - | -
Sawhney
2 Ms. Anuradha Mitra 3 1 25 1 1 1 100
3 | Shri Sanjay Rakesh 2 75 |3 = : :
4 | Smt Kiran Soni : - = 1 > B -
5 Shri Sanjay Goel 3 3 100 3 4 4 100
5 | Shr Gopalkrishnan S. ' 4 3 7S |- - E -
|7 | Shri Abhay Karandikar 4 0 0 -
B Shr Rajesh Chharia - 4 100 |2 |3 2 75
@ | Dr. Sanjay Bahl a 4 100 |1 1 1 100
10 | Dr. Omkar Rai 4 4 100 |1 1 0 -
11 | Shri Anil Jain 4 |2 50 |2 2 1 50
12 | ShriM. P. Vijay Kumar | 4 | 1 25 - - - = |
13 | Shri R § Mani 5] 4 100 |1 1 B z
4 | Shri Dilip Barman 4 4 100 |- 2 Il
16 | Shri Suhru Ram Sayal | 4 4 100 |1 2 | 2 100 |
16  Shri Pinkesh Kotecha | 4 3 75 |1 T 100 |
Fﬁ'_- Shri Jagmohan Singh | 4 2 60 1 | | 1 . 100

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
(SEC. 188): Information on transactions with related parties pursuant to Section
134(3)(h) of the Act read with rule B(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 are
given in Annexure | iIn Form AOC-2 and the same forms part of this report.

Also refer Note No.33 of Other Notes to Accounts of Financial statement

National Internet Exchange of India 3'/
Regd. Of.: 8C, 60 6E. Hanszlaya Bullding
|5, Barakhamba Road, New Dulhi-110001
1-11- 48202000, Fax: +91-11-48202013 13
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186: The Company has not given any loans or guarantees and n
investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As provided under Section 92(3) of the Act, the extract of annual return is given in
Annexure Il in the prescribed Form MGT-8, which forms part of this report.

COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

'S.No. | Members -
1 Shri Sanjay Goel
2 Shri Rajesh Chharia
3 ShriS. R Sayal

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (SECTION 135):

The Board of Directors during the year under review approved the Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company pursuant to provisions of section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules 2014, The CSR policy is available on the website of the Company at
httoe/inixi.infimages/CSR - Folicy pdf

A brief outline of the CSR policy, the CSR initiative undertaken during the financial year
2018-19 together with the progress thereon and the Annual report on CSR activities are
set out in Annexure |l to this report.

COST RECORDS & COST AUDIT

Maintenance of cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. for the financial year 2018-19 are not
applicable to the Company.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN

Company has Corporate Governance Committee for complying the provisions of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
as mentioned in the HR policy of the Company

National Internet Exchange of India ﬂ,,_,f
RE!”’ Off.. 8C, 812, BE, Harnsalays Butlding

arachamba Foan New Dalhi-110004%

Tes] 1._: 1 -AH .|I_'. (ily Fax +91-11 :_.r.|‘..' B 14
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Pursuant to section 134 (3) (n) of the Companies Act 2013, the Board' TRY

Include a statement indicating development and implementation of a risk management
policy for the company including identification therein of elements of risk, if any, In which
the opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the company.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Particulars of employees as required by Section 197 of the Companies Act 2013 read
with rule 5{1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managenal
Personnel) Rules, 2014 NIL

PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

Measures taken for Conservation of energy. - NIL
Additional investment and proposal for reduction of energy usage- NIL
TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION - NIL

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Earning in foreign exchange:

From Domain registrations Rs. 21103454
(Represents the total collection made in foreign currency

to be proportionately allocated as income over the period

of domain registered)

Expenditure in Foreign Currency

-Subscription & Travelling Rs 11232322

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors. to the
best of their knowledge and ability, confirm that:

I, In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have
been followed and there are no material departures;

Il they have selected such accounting palicies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the
profit of the Company for that peried:

v
National Internet Exchange of India S)
Regd. OF_; 6C_GD, 6E, Mansalava Building

Jehd Mo DNoifl-1 10009

5 Barakhs

Tei  «01-114B202000 Fax <91 1148202013 'Tﬁ
CiIN -_I'__:_Il-_._..:.|' | FORNPL 1 2000 M
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iil. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities:

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

v. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Directors express their gratitude to the Government of India, Ministry of Communications
and Information Technolegy, IIT Madras, ISPAl and all members for their kind co-
operation, Directors' place on record the appreciation for the overwhelming co-operation
and assistance received from the Bankers, customers and others. The board wishes to
place on record its deep sense of appreciation for the contribution made by all
employees in ensuring high level of performance and growth during the year

For and On behalf of the Board of Directors
National Internet Exchange of India

' £
.f].
iand
. | 1“‘_ I
NECA ot
ay Goel Dilip Kumar Barman
(Director) (Director)
DIN: 08023127 DIN: 07322268
Place: New Delhi
Date: 30" September, 2019
National Internet Exchange of India
Regd. Off.. 6C. 60, 6E. Hansalaya Sullding
i5 Barakhambs Road, Mew Dell Elalilng]
al. . +81-11-48202000, Fax: +81-11-48202013 TE
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Form No. AQC-2
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(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule B(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered Into by the company
with related parties refarred o In sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
Including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or amangements or transactions not at arm's length basis: The

Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related

parties which |s not at arm's length during financial year 2018-189.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions al arm's length basis. The

Company has entered into following contract with its related parties during the financial year

2018-19,

' Name(s) of | Nature of Nature of | Duration of the contracts / Date | Amount | Transa |
the related relationship contracts | arrangements/ of paid as | ctions
party [ transactions dpprov | advanc | includin

arrange al by es, If g the
ments/ the any value
transacti Board {Rs.)
CJ Online Enterprise Annual Affiliation fee based on
over which resources holding as of 30 April
KMP 2018 for the period of 01 May
(Propnetor) is 2018 to 30 April 2019 ML f2581
having
significant
influence:
Chandra Annual Affiliation fee based on ‘
industnal Co. resaurces holding as of 30 April
| Private pevenue | 2018 for the period of 01 May bl ‘
_Limited (Renews 2018 1o 30 April 2019,
CJ Online Enterprise 1afip | Annual Affiliation fee based on
Frivate over which ke resources holding as of 30 June
Limited management ! rem:}urr;e 2018 for the perlgd of 01 July NIL 196601

L _| personnel ( 2018 to 30 June 2019 |

| Madhav Director) is Annual Affiliation fee based on
Cement having resources holding as of 31 NIL 72581 |
Private significant March 2018 for the period of 01
Limited influence April 2018 to 31 March 2018,

Ishan Annual Affiliation fee based on
Metcom resources holding as of 30 June ;
Private 2018 for the period of 01 July ML Sl
Limited | 2018 to 30 June 2019
National Internet Exchange of India /
Regd. Off.: 6C. BD, 6E. Hansalava Building Q
15 Barakhamba Road. New Dalli-110001
gl 211148202000, Fax, +591-11-48202013 17
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Ishan Netsol Annual Affiliation fee based on
Private resources holding as of 31 REGISTRY
Limited January 2019 for the period of NIL 167608
01 February 2019 to 31 January
2020 .
Ishan [
Infotech Ltd NiL ]

Remarks: Qutstanding at the end of financial year Rs 25,200/ ( Ishan Infotech Ltd - Rs
4 808/~ & Ishan Netsol Pvt Ltd - Rs 20,292/-)

For and On behalf of the Board of Directors

National Internet Exchange of India (y_/

Neg &%&
Sanjay Goel Kumar Barman

{Director) (Director)
DIN: 08023127 DIN: 07322268
Place: New Delhi
Date: 30" September, 2019
National Internet Exchange of India }/

Regd. O#H.: 8C 60, 6E, Hansalaya Bullding

Bamakmamba Road MNew Daalbi-110001
311-11-48202000 Fax «91-11-48202013 18 h
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ANNEXURE Il
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
for the financial year ended on 31" March 2019
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12{1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.  REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

1 CIN: UT2900DL2003NPL120999

i)  Registration Date: 19" June 2003

i) Name of the Company: NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA

\v)  Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Incorporated ufs 25 of the Companies
Act 1856 (naw section 8 of Companies Act 2013) - a Public Company not having share
capital

v} Address of the Registered office and contact details : Flat No. 8C, 6D & BE, §"
Floor, Hansalya building, 15 Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-110001. Website:
Www.nixi in, www reqistry in, www irinn.in, Tel.- +91-1148202000

vi)  Whether listed company: No

vil)  Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent. if any: NA

Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of
the company shall be stated:-

Sl No. iName and Description | NIC Code of the | % to total turnover of the

of main Activities Product/ service company
1 Internet Exchange MNA 6.9
B LIN registry NA 786
'3 NR - S NA 14.5

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
Ml

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of
Total Equity): The Company does not have any share capital,

) Categm'wlsghlsgﬁeﬂnuﬁ "ﬁ'l{ués\'net Exchange of India l*/

Rpgd DH 60 BE wsatava Building
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i) Shareholding of Promoters: NA

REGISTRY

li) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding: NA
iv) Shareholding pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and

Holders of GDRs and ADRs): NA
v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: NA

V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for

payment:
Particulars B Secured Loans | Unsecured | Deposits | Total R
| excluding Loans Indebtedness
| deposits |
Indebtedness at the I
beginning of the financial |
year |
1) Principal Amount Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Interest due but not paid ‘
| iii) Interest accrued but not
due _ !
Total (i+ii+iil) [ N T NIl | Nl Nl
Change in Indebtedness |
during the financial year , ,
v Addition y ! Nil | Nil ‘ Nil Nil
. Reduction | ,
Net Change Nl N TN Nil

Indebtedness at the
nd of the financial year
) Principal Amount | Nil ' Nil Nil Nil
1) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii) | Nil NI | Ni Nil

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/ar Manager: NA
B. Remuneration to other directors: Nil

C. Remuneration to key managerial persannel other than MD/Manager/WTD: NA

National Internet Exchange of India
Regd. Oft.; 6C BB, 6E, Hansalaya Bullding
5 ‘.'-:': Kz g Hr ot l.‘|_1.._ "r..” L= 11000 1 -.II

‘.E__- +01-11-48202001 Fax. +571-17=48

Cin-UT280000L2003NPL 12000 '.\lh
WA T N WISWWLTEIGESTIY. N, WW Innm U
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VIl. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type ection of Brief

[Details of

Authority

ompanies Act Description |Penalty/Punishme (RD/NCLT/Court) if any

REGISTRY

Appeal made |

nt/Compounding
| fees imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment NA NA NA NA NA
Ccmpnqn‘ging NA NA | NA NA MNA |
B. DIRECTORS
“Penalty | NA NA NA NA NA |
Punishmant | NA NA NA NA NA |
| Compounding NA [ ONA NA NA NA
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty ' NA NA NA NA NA
Punishment MNA NA NA NA MNA
Compounding NA NA NA NA NA
For and On behalf of the Board of Directors
National Internet Exchange of India
9 = -
Wy &
|

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30" September, 2019

National Internet Exchange of India
Regd. O#.: 6C_Al
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Sanjay Goel
(Director)
DIN: 08023127

il

6E. Hansalava Building
Road, New Dal-110001

ar, ~91-11-48202013
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umar Barman
(Director)
DIN: 07322268
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ANNEXURE Il REGISTRY

Annual Report on CSR Activities

(1) A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be Undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects
or Programmes:

NIXI's CSR policy intends to:
1) Improve quality of life of communities through long-term value creation for all
stakeholders.
i) Strive for economic development by protecting and promoting the interest of
the Internet users around the country specifically in the rural areas.

in pursuance to the Companies Act. 2013, NIXI's CSR activities amongst others, will
focus on Education and traiming and Rural Development Projects. The policy can be

accessed at http //nixi.infimages/CSR_Policy pdf

The Board approved the spending of CSR amount of Rs. 86,72 lacs for FY 2018-19 in
the Prime Minister's Relief Fund. Further, the Board opined to explore areas for
spending CSR corpus that neither has direct connection to the business of the Company
nor completely unrelated to its objectives.

{2} The Composition of the CSR Committee
Shri Sanjay Goel, CED, Director, NIXI
Shri Anil Jain, Director, NIXI
Shri R.S. Mani, Director, NIXI
Shri Rajesh Chharia, Director, NIX|
Shri Jagmohan Singh, Director, NIXI

(3) Average net profit of the company for last three financial years: Rs. 4836.02 lacs

(4) Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): Rs. 96 72
lakhs

{3) Details of C3R spent during the financial year.
{a) Total amount spent for the financial year: Rs. 96.72 lakhs

(5) Amount N‘ﬂ?ﬂiﬁ:fl‘!rﬁbrnet Exchange uf India J
Regd G‘H 6C. B0, 6E. Hansalaya Bulkdin
iS5 Bar wimiba Road  MNew Delhi- 1100071
Tl 511148202000 Fax +91-11-48202013 22 hlll
i F2A00DL2D0ANPL 1 200eG I.lp1L

WAL NI I, WIWWLTRGISITY I, WAL ITI: .I
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{e) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

REGISTRY

s SR Sector  in Projects or Amourt  Amount Cumulative Amount
No. project or which the programmes  outlay spent  on expendiure |Spen1
ctivity ~ project is (1)  Local E:udget he project up to the direct or
dentified covered area or other roject oror reparting  through
' (2)  Specify programme programme period impleme
| the state and wise ub Heads; fntlng
district  where 1} Direct agency
projects or xpenditure
programs was n projects
undertaken r
rogramme
(2) Over
- heads A S
1 Prime Contributio NA Rs. 9672 | Rs 96.72 Rs. 9672 Rs
Minister' | ns to lakhs lakhs lakhs a6 72
s Relief | Prime lakhs
Fund Minister's
Relief
| Fund

8. Reason for not spending the twe per cent of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof: NA

7. The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and maonitoring of CSR Policy,

is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the company

For and On behalf of the Board of Directors
National Internet Exchange of India

(B
\ \ .F’
\oe~ ﬁ}g'
i Sanjay Goel Kumar Barman
(Director) (Director)
DIN: 08023127 DIN: 07322268
Place: New Delhi
Date: 30" September, 2019
National Internet Exchange of India
Regd. Off.: 6C, 6D, BE, Hansalgya Building
15, Barakhamba Road, New Dalhi-110001 23
Tal - +931-11 R202000 Fax +49%-11-4B202073
CIN-U 7290001 2003NPL 120008
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5SS KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY

CHARTERED ACTOLINTANTES

Independent Auditors’ Report

To
The Members
National Internet Exchange of India

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Dpinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of National Internet Exchange of
India ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, Income and Expenditure
Account (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the
significant accounting policies and ather explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “standalane
financial statements”),

In our.opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”] in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standard prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, the surplus and total comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended en that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act [SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basls for our audit opinion an the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report particularly with respect
to the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon, The other
information is expected to be made a le to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Plot No. 68, Okhla Industrial Arga, Phass-1)l, Naw Delhi-110020
Tel: +21-11-4670 BESE E-mall; info @sskmin.com wiw, sskmin.com
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CHAHTERED ACCLALANTANTS

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the other information identified above If, we conclude that there |s a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial
Statements.

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Ind AS, This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and far preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accaunting policies,
making judements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalope financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is respansible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do sa.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial staternents as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance; but is not a gEuarantes
that an audit conducted in accordance with 5As will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the gverride of internal contral,
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* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate In the clreumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our gpinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or canditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ahility to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, [f such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events ar conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

Materiality is the magnitude of misstaterments in the standalone financial statements that, individually or
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L This report does not include a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 & 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143{11) of the
Companies Act, 2013, since in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the said Order is nat applicable to the Company .

2. Asrequired by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:
(a] We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
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(B) In our epinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, Income and Expenditure Account (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement of Change in Equity dealt with by this report are in
agreement with the books of account,

{d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rule Issued thereunder.

(e} On the basis of written representations received from the directars as on March 21, 2019 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2019
from being appointed as a director in terms of sub-section 2 of section 164 of the Act.

(] The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not applicable to the Company
since the Campany has not paid any remuneration to its directors. Accordingly, reparting under
section 197(16) is not applicable.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure A", and

{h}  With respect to the other matters to beincluded in the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies [Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

I, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone financlal statements — Refer Note 16 to the standalane financial statements.

i, The company has made adequate provision, as required under the law or accounting
standards for material foreseeable losses, if any on long term contracts including derlvative
contracts.

iil, There were no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Pratection Fund by the Company.

For$5 KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
tion Number: D007S6M

NAVEEN AGGARWAL
Place: New Delhi Partner
Date: 2 Efﬂ M ||c5 Membership Number; 094380

UBIN{ [909Y 280 APRAEP £139

27



SS KOTHARI MEHTA
& COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCTILINTANTE

"Annexure A" to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Standalone Financial
Statements of National Internet Exchange Of India.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 2(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of National Internet Exchange Of
India ("the Campany”] as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management Is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financlal Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business;
including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of refiable financial information, as required under the Companles Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Cur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls bver finaneial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reparting |"the Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
Issued by ICA| and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adeqguate internal financial controls over financial reparting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to abtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reparting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the rellability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recarded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are belng made only
In accardance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention ar timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial contrals over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deterjorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such Internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For 55 KOTHARI MEHTA & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 0OO756N

RNEHT ¢
S Z\\
; e ——=
@ =/ NAVEEN AGGARWAL
Place: New Delhi Q' &: Partner
Date: g,g-raj’-yn 19 Bas .coMefbership Number: 034380

Ubmy: 190943 SBOAMAEP £939
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SATIONAL INTERNET EXCIHANGE OF INDIA
STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3157 MARCTIL, 2019

Ax per our Beport of even date anueched

Chanered Ascouniants

rnr 5% kotherd Viehta & p
Firm Reg Mo, (007562

Naveen Apgurwal
['orimer
Membershup b, (R4540

Mnee - New Delhi
hivte: 30-{8-201%

I accompninving roles melemed to above Torm mn integral prari ol the standaione finanein! satdments

For ind on behalf of the Board of Direéctor

Mo

Sanjay Cwoel
Direstor
1IN pR023)27

Axat Asut As ol
Purticulars Note Moo March 30,2019 March 31, 2008 April 1, 2017
(L5} (Hs) (Hs)

1 ASKETS
L Non Curreat Assets
i Troperty, Mlant & Eguipmen 2 13,081,553 98 450 15,183,746
b {ther nangibie Assets 3 16548 21,790 LR B
o Vinusie|nl Assets

I (ither Financial Astely 4a 106,376,367 26 205 ARG T4ITI AT
il T Churrent Tax Asses (MNer) 5 $2T.TI0524 445957 2453 384,731,335
e Ciher Nim Current Astets frun S4B 434,589 SUZ.209,704 3476489
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 1. 195,699 981 943,622 N3 A77,563.44]
L0 wrrent Asseis
. Plmigen) Adets

I Trode Receivablds 4 61,930,681 F1.38.A5] I8, 7647 380

n Uash and ensh Bgorvalenty 4d 27,740,853 | T8 A9S 090 26,583, 04

i Puok Halanees oibwer tran (1) above de 2795770238 2355921759 2I190TR.TRA

v Chber Fronncisl Assets 4h TAAGT 105 58284963 SAR35.340
b, Chibsigr Ceerrent Assain il 20, 14,502 SH.EISAT4 107711156
TOTAL CUHRRENT ASSETS 3332109 380 2.700.776,237 2 EILRTS AA0
T AL ASSETS 4427 809,361 3686399175 009,739,110
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A gty
. Lapritad Fesiaed T 3,000 387 23] 2925 370 KUK 23T 345119
FOTAL EQUITY 3600257 271 2S5 ITH9E 2371345110
B Liahilities
L. Non Curreat Lisbilities
0. Froncud | aakvilities

i Crher Financial Linhilines i 1661, 165 2AGR 288 3045 545
b Cilwer Mon Cirren Liabilities 9 203987 561 217667178 130 584 72
¢ Provislons 10w 254104 408122 1444 9A8
FOTAL NON CURRENT LIARILITIES 206 444 |40 220,984 566 144,138 2K]
I Curevent Linbilitics
i Firmncial Liabilities

i [rade Poyabilos Ha

Phies of Micro Enterprises nisd Snul! Brilerprises R - .
Fhites af Creditors Othir than Micto Eterprises ad Smull Eniormrises 55 48, 0% #12360.31 16381477

. Oiher Finameul Taabilites Re 350577 37850347 22 656493
b Uithier Cyrren) Linhilivies i F34.994, 108 421230372 ASE 467 009
o Prowisiine 1l - Y3 636 6,731
TOTAL CURRENT LIABLITIES 621 037,500 540,434,711 AP 355 710
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 4427 B1.361 1686399175 3,00%,739.110
*otes b Ascounis 1-3

e
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NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF INCOME & EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED JIST MARCH, 2019

Yenr Ended Yeur Ended
Particulars Mote  Maorch 31,2019 March 31, 2008
Mo, {Hs) {Hs)
1 Revenue from Opersfions 11 T11,539.020 677,701,485
11 Other Income 12 218,762 487 126,969 363
I Total Income {[+11) 930,301,507 B04,670.850
IV Expennes:
Operational Expenses L3 187,029,616 152,091,485
Emploves Benelits Fapense 14 20,305,862 20), 666,550
Depreciation & Amortieation Fxpense &3 2L978.670 4,856,625
Ohher Expensgs 15 38,544, 532 36,473,062
Totnl Expenses (TV) 248,858,680 214,087,762
V' Sorplus before tax (IIL-IV) 681,442 827 S90,583,088
VI Tax expense - =
VI Surplus for the period (V-V} 681,442,827 S0H1,583,088
VU Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tas)
ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit or Losy
Remeasurement Guin of (Loss) on Defined Benefit Plans 286,600 56,691
Income Tax on the ubove ilem
Total (Mher Comprehensive Income [ Net of Tax) 286,600 156,691
1x Total Comprehensive income for the period (VIFVII
(Comprising profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for 641,729,427 590,939,779
the period)
Notes o Acconniy 1-3
The sccompanying notes refermed 1o above form an intezral part of the siendalone financial siawemenls
As per our Report of even daie attnched Forund on behalf of the Board of Directory

MH Wﬂl - f'. i
1 & ; -"-Fr‘-i-"
Noveen Aggarwal T Sanjay Goel

Partner Drirector

Membership Mo, 094380 DIN: 08023127
Place : New Delhi

Do 30-09-201%

g_&/i«

Dilip Kumar Barman

Dhirecinr
DIN: 67322364
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NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA

[CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2019

Ax per our Report of even date attached,

For S S Kothari Mehia & Com
Chorered Accountants
Firm Reg. No. 000756M

Naveen Aggurwal
Partreer
Membership No. 094380

Place : New Delhi
[hate; 30-09-2(319

3 I'revious year's figures bave been rearangod/regrowpodrectnsificd wherever neccssary

-

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

'l:_f__,k:?:if;

Sanjay Goel
Director
DIN: 08023127

A AL As AL
Particulnr March 312019 March 31,2018
{A) Cash from operationnl sctivities

Surplus from operational activities 681,729,427 590,939,779
Adjustments for
Diepreciation 2,578,670 4,856,625
Interest Barmed (217,285.433) (125.228.250)
Discarded of Fixed Assets 56,755 253.614
Appropriation o Marketing Fund {net of utilisations made) (6.822.004) {221,072.102) (35.600.398) [1535,718.408)
Operational Surplus before working capital changes 460,657,325 435,221,370

{Incresse) Decrense in Receivables (10,892.130) (32.271.171)

{Incrense )V Decrease in Other Current Finneial Agsets (16,182,142} 350377

(Imcrexse WDecreane in Other Current: Assets AR.647,372 45,875,281

{Incrense VDecrense i Other Mon Currenl Finuncinl Assets (BOOROL6HT) 47,975,731

{IneresseVDecrense in NonCurrent Assets (Nef ) {81,773.261) (61.265.927

{Incresse)/Decrease in Other MonCurment Assets {46,244 RBS) (498,733,215

Increpsed Decrease) in Other Mon Current Financial linbilities (7471013 (691.322)

Imeremse Décrense) in Other Mon Current liabilities & Provision (13,253.325) TT.037.610

Incremse{ Deerease) in Current Financial linbilitics (32,576, 798) TRITRTILS

Inereaseli PDecrease) in Cither Current liabilities & Provisions 113,080,077 {130,022 8735) (31.899.713) (372243637}
Net cash [vom operating Activities 33(L634,450 62,977,731

{13} Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Interest Earmned 217285433 125,128,250
Soleof Fixed Assets 16,138 11.955
Purchase of Froed weets (7.029,778) (162 K582
Net Inerense in Cosh and Cash Equivalent 540,906,243 88,055,056
Cash and Cash equivalent al the beginning of the Period 2534616849 2.346.561,7493
Cash and Cash equivalent al the end of the Period 3,075,523,092 2534616849
BT H
| Cash ond cash eguivalenss includes
C'ash i Hand 3212 3,212
Current Accounts 093 754923 41 4871.879
Saving Accounts 83,992,719 136,417,949
Cash and cosh equivalents at the vear end {A) 279,752 854 178,695.090
Other Bank Balances
Terms Deposits (Original maturity - period more than 3 months) HEY] 2,793,77T0.238 2,355.921.759
Cash und Bank Balunos a8 on 31 Mar 19/ 31 Mar 18 (A)=1{B) 3.075.523,092 2,534,616,54%
2 Figures in bracket indicate chish outfiow. o

3R

ilip Kumar Barmon|

y
"

Dhirector
DIN: 07322268
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SATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MA RO 31, 2010

As Al KAl Al At
Particulars March 31, 3019 Miirch 31, 2014 I April, 2007
{Rs {Rs} (R} ]
ANCTAL ASSETS B -
OTHER FINANTIAL ASSETS
Nen Current
Considered gond wnless stated otherwise
Rieourity Dopadits
« Lonsridered good 3416 050 £078 RET 5514 47K
- Uonsldered deubtfnl G A - -
3,485,399 JUTREST 5539478
ks s Allowanee Tor doubiiul dobt (68 400} - =
JAl6.59% 5910867 25 AT
Uther Hpk Depmsies switll masarity of mire than | vear & maturing nfter 102,950,768 20.315.419 68,731 970
| yeur of reporting date
TOTAL 104,376 367 26,295 5RO TAETL ALY
Lurremg
Comsiidered good unless stated otherwise
GST Recoverable (Export) 11,635 K33 21635833 .
Imtereit Acered on Term Dypouiti with Banks $2 831,272 3,549, 30 5K 835,340
TOTAL T4 467,105 SR.IB4.963 S8.H438 140
NON CURHENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Irieorme-tas Hefnd Due T8 Recoverible 527,770,524 445 957 262 iN4.731.333
TETAL S27,7T0.524 445,997,262 J84. 731335
OTHER ASSETS
Moom urrent
Considered good unless stated otherw ise
Prepad Experises 1,06 320 1,947 067 2827399
Prepad Fenm-Fiir Vilee - 232437 638,590
Seeurty | eposits
= Cimtidered good 17588 10,500 10,5600
Advances Recovernble o Cash or in 8ind
= Linsecured. considered good 5173723758 SO0 160, LI -
TOTKAL 548454509 502,209,704 JATGHAR9
Lurren)
Consitdered goold unless stnted seherwlse
Advinces Recoverable m Cashoor in Kind
= Uinsecured, considered goodd §.254.950 7341238 26850, 198
= Unsecured. considered doubtiy] 145798 142,798 185 TR
B0, 754 1837034 X7 3% 00
Luzs - Adlowasiee fop douhtfl dek (L85, 798y [ERETHE) L185 TUR)
8,254,956 7341256 26,850, 19K
Securmy Depeosits
= Connidered pood - 14,000
Techmul Service Charges Paid m Advagee - I8 32818 71765774
CENVAT Creda (58T Recoverable 9.7HE3T0 11,553,732 FA31 204
Mrepaid Expéimes | 893 135 1,421,634 LS TE.A56
Fropmid Kemi-lair vinlue JR2N37 06454 431,226
TEOFTAL 20,188,502 SRR35K74 e, 156
THADE RECFIVARLE
Unsecured, consldered good wnlesy stated otherwise
Lonsidered Good 193068 $1.034,55] I 767,380
TOTAL H1.030,681 51,038,551 18,707,380
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Batlatce with Hanks
- it Cyrrent Accounis 05,754,923 41871879 11481352
= in Savipges Acgounis 183,992 T 136817994 15,092 187
L ash emhand 5312 f.212 4 ARk
TI'OTAL IM.752.854 1 TR 6PE.000 26,583,008
OTHER BANK BALANCES
. TR ]
TOTAL AL L LTS 2,795, 770,238 1355921759 2319.078,785
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NATIONAL INTERSED EXCHANGE OF INDIA

SOTES T FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCLL 31, 2014

As AL Ax At As At
Particulars Murch 31,2019 Murch 31, 2018 1 April, 2007
(K1) (151 (R}
T CAPFITAL FIND
(1] Reserves & Surplus
i Capiinl Gramts
Bdange browght forwand froms previous vear | 304 60| 1304600
leus: Digcarded Aggéls - 1 304 &0 -
- - 1,304 601
hSpeciil Reserve
IRatonce o the beginming of the Finanginl venr 2GR Q0K 487 . -
Adit Prsmsteoed from Accumiilared Surplus 335,029,425 2 108,008 487 2
L4372 2108908 487 -
¢ Marketing Fond
Hiliese at ihe begloning of the Finpmets) vear B 202222 T3653.34] T3.0655.341
Add: Transfernad (ro Statement of Income aid Expendiure 0], 756 6605 S R0 240 -
Lss Utihsed dumg the vear (refier Nole | 5] .43 (03 35600399 -
149,836 793 04 G901, 722 T3.653. 341
il Accumulnted Surpiloy
Halenve al the beginning of the Financial yenr T21.212.498 2296387177 2206 387.17F
Addition during the I'inandial vear tdl A4 R27 300, 583, 084 .
4025553258 2 RR T 205 1306357 177
Less: Approprintions
Tommesfcr (o Spesial Reserve $35.009 424 L IDE.S08 447
naberréd o Marketing Fand A1, 786665 36,849 280 -
BOS, Ba8 225 721,212 408 22963R7.177
TOTAL (1) 3,59%.643.940 2.935.023,207 2ITLMELD
(L) Bioens ol diber comprehensive income
Habsmee ar the hepinning of the Financial vear 356681 - .
Adid Cither Comprehensive Ineome lor the Iinancinl yeur 86,600 356,041 -
Remeasurernent Goln or (Loss) oo Defined Benefin Plans (Net of Tax) - .
TOFEAL LY b1 26| 356,691 -
TOTAL CAPITAL FUND (1 4 1) AT 251 2925379598 137345119
§ FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
{n} TRADE PFAYABLES
Doe of Micoo and Small eniesprises * z - -
Lhies ol Credditors Other than Micoo Enlerposes and Sl Entorprises 55,048,108 E1.26] 336 18381477
TOTAL 35,045, 108 1,261,330 18381477

Miedtium Enterprises. Developmem Act 2006
(bl OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

* Tvere were no outstaniding dues 10 Micto wnd Sl cterprases 1o the extent information available willi the
Shch suppliens e made within the appoimed diys Henee . no amount ol interest paid by the

cudnpany and the paymens inrespeet of
company in erms of section 16 of the Miern, Small g

:',7'!_5] ;,'.-_:_*.n -

Nt Current
Chibgr Mom current Funonginl | ishility 1 661,165 2408 366 3,056 55% |
TOTAL LA61,165 2 A0 266 3,090,585
{0 Carrgnt
Revenue Crasils
Timtomet brought forwad fom previous vear 514444 97 6170, 585
Add: Recelvid during the vear (TIGF Projest) - L1627 000 .
Aled: leteresy Basmed BE3 HET 784,000 A28 254
0408371 13,396,911 b, 398,839
less. Utilisulon durnng the year (Refer note 15) (4.517.829) [4.ET2 d69) (S.h23.524
4 890,502 324442 urEan
Statutory dues payvable K.691.452 I 146,515 917,187
Other Current Fivanaial Liability 1K.017 822 13 ZRE 380 12767305
TOTAL 31595776 37057 12660493
4 OTHEHR LIABRILITIES
(n) Nom Current
Regrrntion Fees Hecelved in advance 203,743, 662 117238159 138,054, 587
I iabiligy- Frair Valoe 243,599 41016 f34.1 38
TLTAL 203,987 501 217667078 134,558,725
(b Current
Registation Fees & Allilution Fees Received in’ Advanze 403 18| 0858 HYR FFLduL Y
Advance Irom 15 P Regltrars Afilintes D081 I8 b ARG 337 £.TeT3
Dt Trumsler Differeitials Dues JLORG6TE F6 300,007 43 572480
Liability- Fair aloe 185 120 195 120 195120
TOTAL ,"{ C . 534,394,105 411,220,372 " 452007 i
[=) J
2 ( wewgeu z \ I V
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NATIONAL INTERNE T EXCHANGE OF INDIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR TUHE YEAR EXDED MARCL 3L, 219

As A Ax AL Ax Al
Particolars March 31, 2019 March 35, 2018 1 Apeil, 2007
(R} {Hs) (Hs)
H FROVISIONS
{ar Nos- Current
Providion for Employsee Heneliis
-t definied benefits iabalitics-gratiy 35414 J08, | 23 | 445 068
TOTAl iz dld 404,132 1449 508
(b Carrent
Froviatan for Employvee Benelin
-Met delined benelit habilibes-granit - - 2394
-Cpmpensaied Absonces - 93,656 230 740
TOTAL e 83,650 246,731
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NATIONAL INTERNET EXNCHANGE OF INDIa
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR EXDED MARCH 31, 2019
e P AR THE VAN ENDED MARCT L,

Yoear Ended Yeny Endel
Particulzry Mlarch 31, 2019 March 31, 1018
(M (Ra)
11 REVENUE FROM OFERATIONS
Revenue from Cuntracts with Customens
Dbsaggrrpuied Hevienge Information
Revanue from Bschange Opesations 2162034 4,200,142
Hovemee frsm Repsmry Olperntiome £35 344 550 5. 880,581
i evpnuie froen MIH Dipernuans From AMiines) 124 2 ey Wl 634, 782
TOraL TIL.539.030 77T 4R
111 Contrach Halanges
Traide Heceivallay ® 1] B30 6H] 10955
Clontmet Lol e {Blefie Mo So G(k))
Adbvistics fiam Gedonrs R OR1 117 Ish, 8, 537
Advatice e Registratbon & AMibuion ) SRR kTR LT
i Transfee Diffiaengls Daey H0%6 6TE A6 02017
TOEAL 50,129,607 AT LM AR

* Tiudy Heeeiinhied are non-interenl bearng and sre gonemdly on iams of 90 15 120 dans

112 Reconciliog the amount of revenine recagnised b the statement of income & expenditure with the controcted pric

W i B mniracted I'r
Adjustmon s
Risthisie
Isgoumg

Hevenur from Contracts with Customers

12 OFHER INCOME
liabeesd Imwnme

< Ut Tiermn Depeyite with Hanls bW 217 653 12034, 867

- Cn Spevinl Saving Acoouns LRERE 4 he1 13

« Uit Cithern 24 924 02 e
Miseslanaous Ingoeme 1 ATT. 08 1, 300327
TOTAL 218762, 487 126,969,365

1 OFERATIENAL EXPENSE
Fiehiien) Sérvice Chirpes I 457 S0 136,000, 71%
Rk Space Chanzes 4nAE84] | 4.5%8.223
Operating Charges 71 TEION
Handwidhh Chacjpey 130,000 196,785
AIMIT Membership Fris Qa4 W30 308
Webme Secuniy expense 1020, &5 Lo R
TOTAL 1870296116 153,091 485
4 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salanun and Atlowances 17 ok B3R 200
Commeizal Ermploves Cost 18042030 1857536
Comuriepe b0, Provadent ond other fusdi M.655 EPTR
Ciratinty a2 1,196,754
St Welfure Expenses 178,547 26372
TOTAL 218,305,862 Tl folii, 5910
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR EXTIED MARCI) 31, 2019
— T AT ATARBAIED MAHL N 3, 2013

NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA

Your Encled Year Ended
Partieulary March 51, 2019 Marek 31, 2018
(Ha,) [Rs}
15 OTITER EXPENSES
Probmgion]. Legsl wnd Consuliiney Chisrgie T 158 08810
Ahilir's reenlinget ion
=Mt i 275,000 250,000
=Cermificaien & othis rinmims LI
«Hemsbureement of euponses 44 60 nrrs
Canfurences & Semmar Activitie 231 8530 .
far anid Spomsership Ity 1,160,000 1,760,000
Marketng Expensc 823,004 13,804 40p
limes: Tronaferred from Marketing Fusd | relirnote 7) 6823094 . 34,600 165 &
T Progeer Expenses 4517820 4870469
lss Translerred troemy JIGF Grant i refer nits Nic)) 4817 ]9 - 4,872 869 H
Orthir Prassatiani Activity 2533 A 4R
Resit Phad TITT300 T2
Remi Hxp-Far Yalle JE6 454 43 2%
InvboristsFa Wialiac 214,584 271
Travellengy & Canveyunce Fxpensis 28017 Jimhai |
Repars and Mamieansoe Eapersas
Butlding 645 900 1,305,213
Fajuisprpniars 109,086 | 68 99%
v LRl AT 15 ARR
Postmpe sl Cammunication Lapemnses §Tonod K70 245
Mg |:1ip.!|1ﬂ.1 & 0 ABS S HIT ARG
Sstrarmigitiain & Memmbirahop Charges T2 468 Glln, Y5
LR Fapeiuss, (Belir pole 24) W ATLiIES 703632
Fiogd Assets Mhscraded 56,744 J51AL4
Priosasiom Bar [loobilul Advinces 68 400 -
Muiscellangous Frperues 0K Za4 3410028
TOTAL 38,544,532 i 473,167
r

—
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NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2019
MOTE 1 COMPANY OVERVIEW, BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

I RATE INFORMATION

o

b

c)

d

t

)

Nastimal Inermet Exchange of India ("NIXI" ar "the Company™) is Not for Profit Section § Public Company Limited by Guoraniee and 15 having the
regiateeod office in New Delhi NIXT wis registered on 19t June. 2003 and was set up for peering of 15Ps among themseives for the purpase of Touting
the domestic iraiic within the country, mstend of taking it oll the Wiy 16 US/Abroad, theraby restilting in better quulicy of service (roduced latency ) und
redhioed bandwidth charges for 151 by saving on Intermational Bandwidth, NIXT is muraged and operated on a Neutral basis, 0 line with the best
practices for such initistives globally,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of eompliance

Lhese financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles Tnid down in the Indiin Accunnting
Standurd (“Ind AS™) s per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Compnnies Act, 2013 (the
Act’) and wiher relevant provisions of the Act 1o the extenil spplicable.

Ihe financial statoment ups 1o year ended March 31, 2017 were prepared in accordance with accounting standieds notified under the section 133 of the
Compntes Agt 2013, rond iogether with Rule 7 of e Compoanics {Azcounts) Roles 2014 (Indian GAAR) and other relevan| provisions of the At

As these gre the Company's fieg financial statements prepared in ocedrdance with Indisn Accounting Standedrds [Ind AS). Ind AS 101, Flra-thine
Adcoption of Indian Acounting standurds has been gpplied. An explanation of how the trassition (o Ind AS Ras wfected (he previvusly reparted
financial position. Aoaneial perfbrmiscs and cash flows of the Company is provided in Noe 32,

Vhese finenclsl siements wore authetised for issue by the Board of Directors on Sepiember 30,2019

Basis of messurement

Ihe financial statements have been prepared on an scerual basls und under the historical cost convention, except for the following:
i Cortain finoneial bssels aed Rabilities messured of Falr Valee ! Amortised Cost:

il Defined benefil plan sesets mensurcd o) Falr Vol

d nls o
Tems ineludid in e fnateis] watements of the Company wre meusired using the currency of the primary economic environment i which the
Lompany operates e funcuonal currency™) The financial stalements-are pressated in Indian Nationnl Rupee CINR'), which fs the Compony s
Tlniethonal and presentation cormency.

Current or Non current classificution

Al Assets and Linhilitics hove been classified my current or non-current as per the Copany’s normal operating evcle and other eritéria set ol in the

Schodule 1 1o the Compunics Act, 2013, Based on the nature of the business of the Company and its business time eyele froom meeption of sn orde

atiel its evmplethon un replizavion in eash and cash equivalents, the Company hos ascermined the opensting eyele us 12 months for the purpose of
curtenl and mon-current classificatlon of sssets wil [abilities

In preparing these Tnancial statements, manngernent has made |udgements, estimutes ind assumnptions that affect the application 0 Beeounting policics
and the reported wmounts of wssetd; linkillties, the disclosures of comingent lidbilites and contingem assets a2 8l the date of finononl satements,

income prul expenses during the period. Actual results may diffier from these estimates. Estimuteds and underlying assampdlons s reviewed on a on-
ging basis. Revisions o estimanes are recognisod prospectively

Application of sceounting policies e seguire. critica] accotnting exlimates wnd ssurmtion jedpemonts hoving the most shenifcant effect on the

s recopnised inthe fnancial stitoments ane;

Ulssbial lifie snd residun) value of Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets;

The prepanition of Fnancial siatements in conformity with gencrally accepted accounting principles requires cstimates and assumplions to ke magde tha
affiect the reported amovnts of assets und libilities on the date of the financial statertents and the reparted amounts of revenues and expenses during

the reparting period. Difference betwedn the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known' materodised:




)

€}

Eroperty, plunt and equipment
i) Regognition und measurement
btems of property, plant and equipment are measured atcost, less accumulated depreciation and sccumulaged impairmen! losses. (Fany.

Cst ol an few of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, mcluding uny directly mribumsble cost of beinging the item 1o i
working condition for it infended wie.

An itei of property, plant and equipment is derecoenised when no fulure econdmic benefit are expected W arise from the continueed use of the nsset or
wpon disposal, Any gain or Toss on disposal o an item of property. plant and eqiipment 1s recognised In Incame & Lixpenditure.

i} Lransition 1o Ind AS

Ot temnsition to Ind AS. the Company has elected 10 cominue with the camying value of all its property. plint and squipment reconised 44 ot Aprdl 1,
20T messured a5 per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the devmed cost of the property. ploet and equipment.

i} Depreciation

Depreciation en propeny, plant and equipment is provided on the written down value metbod based on the uselil 1ife of assets i preseribod unides
Sehedule 11 of the Coimpanies Act. 2013, which an s follows:

Pt & Equipment (Including Computer, Router & Server) - Aty viemrs
Purnituge gnd Fistunes . 10 viars
(AiTiee Equipment - §wenrd
Adr gonaditioner i 5 wiars

I'he Company s estimated the useful lives based on the Assessment made by technical expert, of Air-Conditioners & Cooless different from the lifi
prusoribed in Schedule-l to the Companies Act.2013 from 10 vears 1o 5 years .

Depreciation on sdditions (o of on dispesal of ssets b eoleulated on pro-ratn basis | e from tupte) the dite on which the property, plant and eyl pimen
i pvinloble For wse (disposed ol

Intungible awets

i Recognition und measurement

Intan cyui

Intargible assets thar are acguired by the Company are measured ot cost. Subssguent 10 initial recagnition, (e asseld uwre meassored ol cosl liss
aeumlled gmartizition and accumulsed impairment Josses ifany,

Subsequent expenditarcy are capitlized only whin they fncrease the future ceonomic benefits embodied in the specific sset 10 which they relate

Al intutgible ests are tested for impainnent when there are mdications that the carrying value may it be resoverable. lmpairment losses. i any, are
recinised immedistely in standalone stutement of income & expenditune

Am ticm of imangibic asser is derecognised when no fatire economic bengfit are expected 1o arise from the cantinied use of the msel ot i disposl

Any gin or less on disposal of o item of intn pihle assels i recognised in standalone stabément of [Hesme & expdrditorg,

i) Tenumsition bo Inil A8
Cn transition o Ind AS, compiny his elected 1o contimsie with the carrying vulue of wll of its inmngible assets necognised as & April 1, 2017, measured
s per the previnus GAAP, and tse that carrying value as the decrned cost of such intangible nssets,

Amortizaion Is recogmived [ e ineome salement on 4 straighit-line Basis over the estimued wseful Hvies ol intungible assets o on any other basis thit
refleets the pattem in which the asset’s futeee eeonomic benefis are expected 1o be consumid by the entity. Intangible nasets that ure ot available for
skt wre mortized from the date they are available for wse.

Ihae estiematedd selul Bives are ps follows
Software 10 years

The amortiastion period and the amonization method Tor intangible assets are reviewsd at cach reporting date.

Impatirment of non-financial sssets

Al oach reporting date, the Company reviews the carying amounts of its nen-firancial assets 1o determine whether there is any mdication on
rvpirment. Fony sich indicaiion exists, then the asser’s resoverahle mmotnt is etimited
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d)

I recoveruble amount of an osset iy the greater of its valoe inuse oF fiF value kess costs 1 sell Value In e is bised on the estimated Nature cish

flows, discounted 1o their prosent value using o pre-ies discount e that reflects curreat market assessmionts of the time value of money wnd the risks
specific fo the peut

An Impadrment loss is recognised i the ennving modnt of an asser exceeds its extimuted recoverable amount. Impairment losses are secopnised in
Standnlone Stoement of Ineome & Expendinre.

Vinancial Instruments

1) Initial recognition

The Company recogmises financial assets snd {nancial Rubilities when it beeomes & party 1o the eontructial provisions of the instrament, All (naseiad
agsets and |mbilities ure recognised ar fair value on initinl recognition. exeept for trade roceivibiles which are inttially meastined ot tamssetion prive
Transactfon sosts that are direstly attributubly 1o the acquisition or issue of Tinancial assets and Gnanciol Tabilites, tat are oot ot Fair vilue therorughy

inkcime & expenditure. are added to the fuir value on initial recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of Aruncinl sssets are accounied for at trads
dile.

i) S by [
(1) Finagneial sstets enrriod ai amoet|sed cost

A Fnuncial et bs subscquently measured ol amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method io grss Ay g amauet of the
Tinmecial wsal, iF 1 s hedd within o business model whisse objective fs o hold the asset in arder (o colleot contrictual cich Qows wid the Clxtitbnctum|
fermy ol the finuncial psser give rise on speeified dutes o cash Mows that e solely paviments o prineipal and interest on the principal amount
wistunding. When the financial ssset bs derccognised or impaired, the gain or Joss is recoznised in the standalone statement of income & wpendituire

(B Frranetal nssets ot e value through income & expendinre
Financial wiets which is net classified in any of the above citegorics are subsequently fair valued through income & expondituze,

e} Finnnctal Habiljtes

Financial liabilities are subsequently carned ot amortized cost using the effective interest mie method, For trade and other payables matirng within
one yeur [rom the Balanice Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximide Gibr value due to the shon maturily of thitso {nstraments

() Reclassiticanon of Financinl Assors snd Financial 1iabiliies

The compuny determines slassilication of (inancial pssiets and Tiabilides an iniEa recogmition. Aftde initial recopnitlon, mo reclassificatlon b made for
fimancinl asscts which are equity instraments and financial babilitics. For finencial assets which are debt instraments, a reclassification is made only if
there §+ 4 change in the business model for managing those assets. If the company roclassifics financial assows. it upplics he roclssifient jon
prospoctively from thi recinssification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting pericd following the clungy in business model, |he
compainy dies not restate any previvwsly recognised gaims, lasses (including impairment guins or losses) of intorest,

ifi} Impairment of fingncial nsaels

Ihe Company asiesses on 3 forward looking hasis the expected eredit losses pssociated with s assets carried @ amortised cost Exeept 1'rade
recervablos. expeciad credit losscs mre measured at an wmount equal W the | 2-month Expected Credit Loss (ECL), unless there has been o stenificam
merease m eredit nsk from indtial recopnition, in which e theswe are mekssirod ai lifetime DO

With regand tp trade receivable, the Company-applics tho simplified appronch . whicls roguires expected lifetime losies 1o be recopnised from the infial
regugnition of the trade receivables.

i
Finaneial Assels

Comppny derecognises o financial asser when the contractual rights 1o the cash Nows from the fanncial gsset expire or it troesfies the riphte 1o recetve
the contractual cash Mows in o tramsaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewarids of ownershap of the finencial asset are transforeed or

which the Compony nelther mngfers nor setning substantially all of this risks and rewards of awnership and does not roie comimol of the finmeinl
el

11 the campany enters into transuctions whereby i transfirs assets recognised o its Balance sheet. but retains cither all or subsmntintly all of the risks
nnd rewards of th transforred assets. the iransferred assets ure nol derecogiised.

Finaneial Linbilities
I company derecognises a financial liability when ity contrisctual obligitions are disehusped or concelled, or expire

(v] Offsetting

Fiosancial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presentisd in the brlunee shset whien, ind only when. the company has 4 legally




) _Eair value mensurement
Frir yalue is the price that would b reosived 1o sell an mssed oF pilid 1o transfer o Hiubility wn un orderly transsction between murket participants al the
miasurement date, regurdless of whether that price is directly obsorvable or estimated using other viluation techrigue. I estimating the ft value of o
assel o a Hahility, the Company takes lntd sccount the charscteristies of the asset or Hability if market purtisipants would ke those charncieristics it
aceount when pricing the nsset or Hability st the measursment dite.
Fuir vitlues for measumoment and? or diselosure purposes sre eategorised inlo Level 1, 2 or 3 ased on the degree to which the inputs 1o the Tair value
meastirements are observable and the significance of the input to the fiir value meastrement in its entirety, which are doseribed as fallows:
Lsvel | - This includes financial instruments messured using quoted pricos.
Lievel 2+ The fulr value of finanicial instrument tha are not trded in an active market is determined using vitluation techniques which maximize the use
ol obscrvable market dats dand rely as linle o possible on entity-specific sitimates, 1f all signilicant inpuis require 1o fire valoc an instrupent s
obscrvahle, the instrument is included in level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices ineluded within Jevel 1 that gre abservable for the asset or liahility,
cithier dinectly (Le @ prices) or indirectly (e derived lram prives),
Level 3 - ITome or more of the significant inpui is not based on observabile markiet data, the instrument i ineluded in Level 1.

1} Government G rant
Ihe grants-in-aid neceived from Gove of India, Ministry of Communications: iz sogregated inty capital and revenue griinfs based on sanction leiers
receivid from manistry and utilized B the purpose Tor which it is being given. Grant Le Capitalgront and revenue grant, i any, resmimmg unutitied is
shown wder the head “Capiwl Fund” and * (Other Current Financial Liabilities” respectively 48 the case miay be.
The wowts acquired under the capital gt are capitalized and amottized aver the useful life of the assets as preseribod under sehedule — 11 ol
Companees Act, 2013, The amortiaition of these assets is reflecled a5 adjusiment for depreciation undes thie head of Caplial Graints
The inersst camed through deposit of the grimts is disclosed separaely under the Government grants or untilized prumees a5 npplicable, in sSundalone
financind simements 35 an addition 10 such grang

gl Provisions, € gen b il Contingent Assgl
A provision 15 recopuised if, wsa resull of o past event, the Compuny liss o prosént legal or construetive whligation ther can be estimaned rellably, and &
ts probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required 1o sottle the ehligation,
Contitygent Linbility is disclascd afier carefisl evaluation of fucts, uncermingios and possibility of reimbursement, unléss the possibility of an outlow of
resourees embodying economic beneits is remote. Contingeny liubilitios are not recognised but ane distlosed in notis
Compingent aiscls are pot disclosed in the financial atements unless an inflow of econoimic benefits is probable

b} Revenue Recognition

Hevenue from conlracls with customers
The Company derives revenue by providing serviees of Dot IN Regiatry | Exchange and NI

ol AS 115 “Kovenae from Conlricts sith Clstimers” privvides s contrilbosed rovenue recogrition madel und provides 8 five siep application
approwch w be followed for revenue recognition.

* [elentify the contraci(s) with o costomor,

* Ielemtify the pesfommunce obligaiions;

* Determine the trusaction price:

* Alloeate the transaction price w the performance oblgations;

+ Recopnise revenue when or as i entity satisfies performance obligation.

Reveniue from contructs with cusomers b necognissd on completion ol contractsal performanee for the respective period ot an amount thal relicets the
consideration 1 which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for services, The Compuny has generally concluded that it is the prencipal in its
TUVENUE BEFLILRCITEEATS.

e divclosuncs of sianificant secounting judpeiinents, eaimates aid agsymptions melating o revenue (rom conbracts with customers dne provided in

Nate |1 and diselosures of wransition approgch along witl inpact ol udisption of Ind A 118 on financlal stulernents are provided in Nete [(),




h

il

k)

I

Sule of Servives
For sule ol services, revenue & recognised on satisfaction of performance obligation upon delivery af promiséd sorvice W custpmers ot an amaunt thi
reflects the consldendion the Company cxpects o receive in exchange for those services

The main catogories ol revenue and the basis of recopnition tre as follows:

o) Inommie fronm all of the aperations (Exchango, Repistry & NIR), including Tats Transfer Differentinl Charges and all other inenme ure necognized on
acroul hosis

b Arbitration [ncome i secounted for upon seitlement of the procecdings.

£l MEXD acts ps 0 focilititor for sontlement of traffic exchanped between its [SPs wing XY unfl and T fnowor. Under this arrangement. NIXI
contalidates the traflic exchanged by connected [SPs & respective NIXE node and sertles the aceoumt of entire member 1SPS for nat traffic routed by
1SPs by recciving and piving the collected mmoun through X-Y inveice, P facior is recogrized a8 revenue ia the yesr of invoicing and X-¥ tarilT iy
riruteed through Balance Sheel as payubleneecivable s the cosc may be,

(Mher Revenue Elggm

Interest Invame

Interest incorme i sccrued on 0 time basis, by reference to the principal oulstarding and st the effective interest rile applicable, which is the rate that
exneily descounty edtmated future cish receipts through the expected 1ife of the financial ssset 1 the ssset’s net carrying amount on nitial recognition
Interest income i ineluded m other income in the stafement of Income & Expenditure

Technical nis
Vechrical Services Fee payments to the service provider are related 1o period for-which services ane roceived und the o, [F iy, renmgining
et justed, s carried forward snd disclosed separately under the head "Other Corrent Assets™

Girants Pald
The Girants paiil by the company far the projects funded by it are charped off' w expenses it the year in which utilisation ceriificate is received and
approved by the company.

Income Fax
The company i repistered under sectivn 12A of of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and is exempt from 1ax subjeet 1o compliance of related pravisions of
Income Tax Act, 1961 Accordingly. provision fir tax and deferrod t provisions aré ot applicable,

Em 14
i Short term employee benefits

Shont-tem employer benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A linbility is recognised for the amount oxpeoled W be paid (F the
Cotrpeiny hist  present legal or constructive obligation w pay this wmownl as o result of st serviee provided by the employves and the ohiigation can
he estimated relisbly. Short term cinployee benelit alse inchades short torm compensatod absences and are provided on-actual hasis

i) Defined contribution pluns
Employees henefits in the form of the Company™s contribution 16 Provident Fund, Pension schemse Supernmmation Fund and Employees Sue

Insurance are delined contribution schemes. The Company recopnises contribution pavalble o these schemes s an expnse, when an emplovee rendens
the relons service

I the contribution puyable exceeds contribution already paid. the deficit payable is recopnised ns a liability (sccrued expense), after deducting any
contribution alneady paid. 1 the contribution already paid exvoeds the contribution due for service before the end of the reparting period, the Compury

recopnise thad exeess as an asset (prepadd expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead 1o, for expmple. orediction in fiture peimcnis of o cash
refind.

i) Defined heneft plans
Retirement benefits in the form of gratuity are congidered ns defined benelii plans. The Compuany®s net obligation in respeet of defined benefit plans is

culeulaed by estimating the amoum of future benefit that emplovees. have eamed [n the curren and prior perlods, discounting that amount and
dedicting the fmr value of any plan asses:

I company provides for is pratoity lisbility hased on sctuarial valution of the gratuity lisbilite os at the Balance Shes e, Based on Projected Unit
Credit Method, carried out by Life Insumnce Carporation of India - The Company contributes to the gratuity fund, which are recopnised as plan nssets.
I'he defined benefit obligation as reduced by lair valse of plan asseis js recopnised inthe Standalone Balance Sheet




When the calculation results in & potential assct fior the company, the recoenised asset is limited 16 the present valie of cconvemic benefits avalluble in

the form of wy future refimds fram the plan or reductions in future contribaivns to the plan. To caleulnic the prsent vialue of econamic benelit,
vottsicdieration 1y given o any applicable minimum funding requiremens.

Nt interést expenise {income) on the net defined Hability (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used 10 measure the net defined lability
{asen]. o the net defined labitity (usset) ur the start of e financial yesr after taking fnto account any chunges as a result of contribution and henedir
payments during the yeas, Net mierest expense and ather expenses related 1o defined benefit plans ire recognised in standalone statement of ineome &
expemditure

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when o plan is curtailod, the resulting chingd in benefit thal relstes 1o it servioe Gr the gain or loss on
eurtailment 15 recpgalsed immeodiatcly in staement of income & expendiume. The COTIPAny recogmiges pnins and losses on U setlbement of b defined
henefil plan when the settlement peenrs,

m) Foreipn currency irnns
Lnithal recognitivn:

Cruisactiong in frelgn currencies are translited fto e Compuny s functional currency af the exchange mids ot the dates of the tmasactions.

Conversion:

Mongtary assets and liatnlities denominatod in foreign curmeneies are translited inio the functional currency o the exchange ms af thes reparting dite
MNommonetary assets and lishifities that are measueed ot fair vidue in o forelgn curminiy are ransinted fito te functional eurrency ul the exchanpe rale
wlvemt the Lt valoe was ditermined, Mon-monetary assets and lisbilities that are messired bassd on historical tat in o fbreign curreticy are ranslaled
i the exchanpe eale ol the date ol the transpction

Exchanpe difference:
Exchonge dilferences are recognised in stancalone shement of Income & Expenditure,

n) Sepinent

The Company's husiness uetivity (lls within n single scgment viz., Sorviees of Internet. The segment bis been identificd by taking into secount the
mrjure of services, the differing risks. tie returns, the organisation structure and the internal reporting systems andd the manner in which opersting
resuiln are rewaewed by the Chiel Crpermting Decision Muker (CODM),

0} Cash and sash equivalents
Cash and eash equivalents comprise cash o bank and on hand and short-term deposits with original miaturities of theos manths or less that ane readily
conyertible 1o knewvn ameunts of cash and which are subject to-un insignificant risk of changes in value.

) Cash Now s i

Cash flow statements are prepancd In accordance with “Indirect Methnd™ as expluined in the Accounting Sundard on Staement of Cash Flows {[nd
AS - T0 The cash flows from regular revenue generating. finuncing and investing activity of the Company are segregnied

q) Leuse

Al inceprion of an arrungement. i is determined whether the arrangement I or confiing a lease, ased on the substance of the arrungemont a1 the
inception dote, whether fulfilmenr of the arrmpement G dependent dn the use of o specific assel of dssels or the drmngement conveys a el o use the
anset, even | that right is not esplicitly specified i an smangement. Leases are classified os finance lemses whetever the ferms of e leuse tramafer
sulbretantially all th risks und rowards of ownership o the lessee, All ather leases are clasiificd a5 operating leases.

Company as lessee uniler operating lense

Payments made under operating leses uee recognised in Income & Expenditore. The payments are in fine with the expected geneeal Inflation (o
compensate the lessors expected infationmry cost incrense

Fl gL ceountin liciies

New and amended stunduards

The: Company applied knd AS 115 for the At dme The notune and effeel of the changes #s a result of adoption of new accounting standards are
deseribed below. Sovernl other amendments and imerpretations upply for the first time in March 2019, but da not have an impict on the Tinengial
stafethents of the Company. The Company hos non early adeptid uny stnckards of dmendmenls that have beer B=sued byt are noi vt effective




s) 8

Ind A% 115 Revenue from Contracts with € ustomers
lid A5 115 was issued on 28 Masch 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Comtructs und Ind AS 18 Revenue and it spplies, with limited
eruptiong, 0 all revenue arfsing (ham contrmts with its cusiomerns. tnd A% 115 sulubilishas # five-stup model 1 sevount for revenie srising from
contructs with customers and requires that revenue be recognised 4l an ameuni that reflects the consideration T which an entity expeots to be entitied in
exchange for ransfertmg goods or services 100 customer.

Ind AS: |15 requires antities to exercise judpsment, sking into donslderation all of the sdlevant facts and gircumstiid: when applying coch siep ol the
madel 10 contraces with their customers, The stndard also specifies the sccounting it the incremental oosts of obtaining a contenet and the costs
directly related to fulfilling a conteact. In addition, the stndard requires extensive disclosures.

The Company adopied lod AS 115 using the modified retrospective method of udoption. The ehinge did nit havie o material impuct on the (insncial
laterrients of the Company,

Appendis B wo Ind AS 21 Foreign Currency Trunsactions and Advance Considerations

The appendix clurifies thal. in determining she spot exchunge rate 1o use on Initial recognition of the relred assor experse or income (of et of i) on
the de-recopnition of # non-monetary ss<et or nos-monctary liohilite relating to sdvanee considerntion, the date of the transaction 15 the date on which
an entity imitinlly recognises the non-manelury sssel of ponmonetiry Hability nrising from the advance eomzidesativn. |1 there are multiple puyments or
feceipts in advence, thes the entity must determinie the date of the transactions (or cach payment or roceipt of advance consideration. This Interpretation
closes paidl e Ay impact on the Compuny s financial sitements,

L] A TL83 LICL 1]
I AS 116 Leases
Ined AB 116 Letsos was notified by MOA on 30 March 2019 mnd it replaces ind AS 17 Leasex including appendiced thereto. Ind AS 116 is eifective
for annual periods beginning on orafler | April 2019, Ind A5 | 16 sets out the printiples for the recognition, mensurorment, presentotion and disclosine
ol leases and reguires lassees 0 secount for all leases under & single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting for finmnee lemses under lnd AR
V7. The stundard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees— leases of “low-vilue' asseis {eg., perional computers) wnd shor=term leascs (Lo
lieases with o Jeasc rerm of 12 months of leks). At the commencemernt date of a loase, 1 lessee will recargivise o liability 1o maki lense. pevments (1.c. the
lease linbality] and an asset reprosenting The sight i use the underlying agset during the lease term (e, the right-if-use asset), Lessess will be requined
1o pepmrmicly reengnise the inferest expense on e lease by and the depreelation expense on the fight-ol-ase wes,

Lessaes will be ulso nequired 1o remeasure the lease Bability upan e pecurreied of berthin events (e.g.. o change in the lese term, & change in future
lewse puvmenis resulting from o chonge in an imdex or e used W dotorming thasge paymentsl. The leisee will generally recognise the amount of the
remusiguremant of the Jease lability as un adfustiment 1o the Aght-ufuse IEse]

Lasr mecounting under Ind AS 116 is subttantinlly unchanged from today’s scoounting under Ind AS 17, Lessors will esntinie (o elagsitv nll Jeises
using the same classification principle as in Ind AS 17 and distinguish between two types of lenses: operating and fnanee Jonses:

I'he Compaty intends (o adopt these standards from | April 2009, Ind AS 116 ales repires hessees and lessors to make more extenseve disclosures
than under Ind AS 17
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2019

OTHER NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

16.

Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt®

a) Income Tax

As Al March 31,2019 As At March 31,2018 As At April 1, 2017

Income Tax Bs 30.04.91.329 Rs 27,37,22.955 Rs 27.37.22.955

Deposited Nil ; as at March 31,2018 Nil ; as at April 01,2017 Nil (Gross)

* The Company is hopeful of favourable decision and expect no outflow of resaurces, hence na
provision is made in the books of account.

i)

i)

Income tax assessment has been completed up to AY. 2016-17 except AY. 2015-16.
The appeal filed by the Income Tax department with ITAT against the order of CIT
{(Appeals) for Assessment Year 2009-10, 2010-11, 2011-12& 2012-13 has been decided
in favour of the company. And Hon'ble High Court has also decided the case in favor of
NIXL. The appeals filed with CIT (Appeals) for the Assessment year 2009-10 ta 2013-14
& 2014-15 have been decided In favor of company.

The amount lying as recoverable from Income tax department has been clubbed with
refund due from department and shown as recoverable under Non current tax
asset{Net) in Note No 5.

The income-tax department has also issued a show cause notice on 23 Jan 2012 for
withdrawal of the exemption granted u/s 12 AA of Income Tax Act, 1961 which has
been contested by the Company. Based on the legal opinion and subsequent legislative
amendments, the management is of the view that the activities of the Company fall
under the revised provisions of Sec 2 (15) of the Act and therefore, the exemption
available to the Company shall continue to exist. There has been no further
communication received from Income Tax Department in their regard changing the
financial year.

b] Service Tax

As Al March 31,2019 As At March 31,2008 As At April 1, 2017

Service Tax Rs 7.38.44.961 Rs 13,93,24.719 Rs 139324719

(Deposited Nil ; as at March 31,2018 Nil ; asat April 01,2017 Nil (Gross)

i

The company has been issued show cause cum demand notice amounting to
Rs.7,38,44,961/- for the period of April 2010 to June 2012. Based on legal examination
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NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2019

17.

18.

and opinion, the company is of the opinion that there is a strong case of dropping of
the demand at both CESTAT and commissioner level, Therefore, no provision has been
created for the demand and interest thereon and penalties, if any.

it} During the year the company has received order for the service tax demand upto the
year 2010 amounting to Rs 6,54,79,758.

t) Other matters, including claims relating to third parties eic.

As At March 31,2019 As At March 31,2018 As At April 1, 2017

Other matters, including Rs.1,70,000 Rs.1.70.000 Ks.11,10,000
claims relating to third parties ete.

| (Deposited Wil asat March 31,2018 Nil ; as at April 01,2017 Nil (Gross)

i) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts Rs.1,70,000/- (Previous year
Rs.1,70,000/-) excluding those disclosed elsewhere in these notes to accounts.

d) GST Matters

i} During the year Company has taken a legal opinion on the G5T compliances relating to the
Revenue belonging to the Exchange division. Based on such opinion, Company has taken
necessary corrective actions and booked the differential Income & corresponding GST
liability which has been reclassified in previous year figuras in accordance with IND AS
provisions and corresponding GST liability. Differential income has been reclassified in
previous year .

il The company is in the process of recanciling GST inputs with the ITC available as per GSTN
portal.

Differential liability, if any along with any demand on GST Audit/Assessments will be
accounted in the year of crystalisation.

Following the routing and tariff policy in force and the decision of Board of Directors the data
transfer charges representing charges receivables amounting to Rs.26,10,15,573/- (Previous
year Rs. 16,26,25,500/-) reduced by charges payable amounting to Rs.29,11,02,250/- (Previous
yearRs. 21,47,03,489/-), from and to ISPs respectively are grouped together and the net
resultant balance is shown under other current liability/assets as the case may be. The amount
of charges Rs.1,55,04,554 (Previous Year Rs. 52,61,734) identified as not payable during the year
due to application of P factor (used in the calculation of payment for inter connection between
the ISPs) is carried to Income under data transfer differential charges in note No 11.

The outgoing data transfer charges amounting to Rs.11,63,68,730/- (Previous year Rs
13,61,18,058/-) have been recorded on provisional basis, due to pending untimely / non-receipt
of invoices from the concerned ISPs, many of these invoices have been received/ are in process
of receipt in subsequent period. This also includes amount of Rs.3,78,47,631/- relating to data
transfer charges pertaining to earlier year (Previous year Rs 10,22,23,350).
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19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24,

25.

a) In accordance with the agreement entered into between NIXI and its service provider for
provision of Technical services, the charges to Technical Service Provider (TSP) were paid in
terms of the said agreement after transferring certain specified amount to an account titled
“Marketing Fund” for use as specified in the agreement. The balance at the close of the year in
the account stands at Rs.14,98,36,793/- (previous year Rs.9,49,02,222). This includes Rs.
7.36,53,341/- (previous year Rs.7,36,53,341). represents the amount lying to the credit of
Marketing Fund as on Dec 31, 2012, the date of expiry of the earlier contract with TSP, Pending
the manner of settlement with TSP, these unutilized funds have been reflected under marketing
fund only. The amount of Rs.6,17,56,665 (previous year Rs. 5,68,49,280) credited to the
marketing reserve during the year as per the terms and condition of the agreement with TSP
effective from January 01, 2013. Amount spent for the marketing activities has been shown as
utilized during the year,

b Jin reference to resolution circulated on 07.08.2018 seeking approval for appointment of new
TSP and the same was confirmed in 55" Board meeting on 27 September 2018 , Neustar Data
Infotech (India) Pvt Ltd is appointed as the Technical Service Provider for .IN Registry for the
next five years with effect from 1" January 2019.

The Company has also filed an application u/s 10(46) of the Income Tax Act for seeking income
tax exemption for activities of the Company which is pending for disposal. The respanse from
the office of CBDT Is awaited till date.

In the opinion of the board of directors of the Company, the value on realization of current
assets, loans and advances in the ordinary course of activities of the Company would not be
less than the amount at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet and provision for all known
liabilities has been made

In respect of provisions/payments made to members for services availed during the course of
the company’s operation, the management is of the view that taking into consideration the
procedure followed, the transactions are on arm’s length basis and no benefit in money or
money's worth have been given or accrued to any of its members.

Balances of accounts with some of the parties having debit/credit balances are subject to
confirmation/ reconciliation, The impact, if any, subsequent to the reconciliation isto be taken in
the year in which the confirmation/reconciliation is carried out. The impact of these
reconciliation is not likely to be significant.

As per the Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Respansibility Committee
(CSR Committee) has been formed by the company. During the year, the company has
contributed in Prime Minister's National Relief Fund an amount of Rs. 96,72,055/- {Previous year

Rs. 79,56,326) to ensure the compliance as per the requirement of Schedule Vil of the
Companies Act 2013,

a )in reference to Board Resolution passed in 51" Board meeting on 29th March, 2017, the
project carrying value of Rs.2,10,50,00,000 has been approved for which the entire amount is to
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be paid to ERNET, This project is for setting up of Internet Connectivity & Wi-Fi Spots for
Delivery of Tele-education, Tele-Health, e-Agriculture, e-Commerce at 5,000 locations in rural
areas. Out of the total amount of Rs.2,10,50,00,000 NIXI has paid Rs.50,00,00,000 during the FY
2017-18& has been shown as advance recoverable in note 6(a). During the FY 2018-19, ERNET
has submitted revised proposal with total outlay of Rs 53,12,00,000 against the already released
amount of Rs 50,00,00,000 by NIXI in April 2017 and it has been approved in the board also. Nixi
has also accounted Rs 2,45,35,250/- as interest on such advance based on confirmation from the
party which has been separately disclosed in Nota No 6.

26.  Employee Benefit

The Company participates in defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are
held {where funded) in separately with LIC funds. For defined contribution schemes the amount
charged to the statements of profit or loss is the total of contributions payable in the year.

a) Defined contribution Plans
Amount recognized as an expense and included in Note 14 Item "Contribution to Provident
and Other Funds” Rs 34,655 (Previous year Rs 359,858)Consist of Contribution to Provident
Fund Rs, 28700 (Previous year Rs, 28,500) and to ESI Rs. 5,955 (Previous year Rs. 11,358).

b) Defined benefits plans - as per LIC valuation

Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
Particulars Gratuity Gratuity
[Funded | (Funded ) |'
Change in present value of abligation during the year
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 2311726 1,473,945
Included in profit and loss:
Current Service Cost E88,199 610,854
Interest Cost 177,100 107 136
Past Service Cost . 548,769
Actuanal losses/(gains)
Expernence Judgement
Included in DCI:
Actuanil losses/{gains} arising fram:
Experience. ludgement (319,096) (422,581)
Financial assumption
Others
Benefits Pald [589,538) -
Present Value of obligation as at year-end 2,474,491 2308

Change in Falr Value of Plan Assets during the year
Plan assets at the beginning of the year 1,908,604
Included in profit and loss:
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Expected return on plan assets 132,737 70,005
Included in OCI:

Actuarial Gain/{Loss) on plan assets (32.496) (66,290)
Others:

Employer's contribution 219,780 1,504,889
Benefits paid {589,538) 2
Plan assets at the end of the year 1,639,077 1,508,604

The glan assets are managed by the Gratuity Trust formed by the Company.

Gratuity Benefit Plans:

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five
years or more of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for
each completed year of service. The Company provides for the liability in its books of

accounts based on the LIC valuation.

The employee gratuity fund scheme is managed by LIC. The following table set aut the
funded status of the gratuity plan recognized as per the company’s financial statement as at

31.03.2019
Year ended March 31, 2019 Year ended March 31, 2018
Particulars Gratulty Gratulty
{Funded | (Funded |
M. Reconcillation of Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation and Fair Value of Plan Assets
1. Present Value of obligation as at year-end 2.474,491 2317727
2. Fair value of plan assets at year end 1,635,077 1,908,604
3. Funded status {Surplus/ [Deficit)} {835,414) (408,123)
Net Asset/f|Liability) (835,414} (409,123}
IV. Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
1. Current Service Cost 288,199 610,853
2. Acturial [Gain) f Loss
3. Past Service Cost g 548,760
4. Met interest Cost/ (Income) on the net defined benafit 44,373 37131
liabifi ty
Total Expense 932,672 1,196,754
V.  Eapenses recognised in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
1. Met Actuarial (Gain)/Loss {319,096} (422,981)
2. Expected return on plan assets excluding interest income 32,496 66,2390
Total Expense (2B6,600) [356,691)
Vi. Constltution of Plan Assets
Funded with LIC 100% 100%
Vil.  Bifurcation of PRO at the and of the year
L. Current Liability . .
2. Mon-Current Liability B35,414 409,122
Vill.  Actuarial Assumptions
1. Dlscount Rate T.70% T.70% !

21



NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA
CIN-U72900DL2003NPL120999

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2019

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)  indian Assured Lives Martality
2. Martality Table Ut (2006-08] Ut
3. Salary Escalation TH 7%
4. Turnover Rate 1% 1%
X, Experience Adjustment;
Gratuity 2018-19 2017-18
Present Malue of obligation 2,474,481 2,317,127
Fair value of Plan asssts 1,639,077 1.908,604
het Asset/{Liability) {835,414) (408,123
Actuarial (Gain}/Loss an plan obligation {313,096) (422,981)
Actuarial Gain/{Loss) on plan assets (32,436) 166,250
X. Sensitivity Analysis
Gratuity Year ended March 31, 2019 Yearended March 31,2018 |
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease |
Diseount rate [(0.5% movement) 2,293,208 2,673,523 2138527 25}5119_5.1
Future saiary growth (0.5% movement) 2,564,245 2,383,367 2233484 2415785
Xl Maturity Profile of projected benefit obligation: from the fund
Particulars 2018-19 1017-18
1¥ear 35,444 37,638
2 to 5 Years 206,544 187 564
& to 10 Years 388,211 355,636

Xil. Description of Risk Exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to various
risks as foliow -

a) Salary Increases- Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability, Increasa in salary increase rate assumption in future
valuations will also Increase the liability,

b) Investment Risk — If Plan s funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets jowear than the discount rate
assumad at the last valuation date can impact the Hability.

¢} Discount Rate — Reduction In discount rate ip subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liabiiity.

d} Mortality & disability = Actual dosths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumad In the valustion can Impact the
liabilities.

e} Withdrawals = Actuzl withdrawals proving higher or iower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can Impact Plan's liahility.

7. Special Reserve
Special reserve has been created under Section 11 of the Income Tax Act, 1961, by transferring

the unutilized amount in excess of 15% of the total income for the purpose to achieve the
objects of the Company.
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28,

29.

Further, the accumulated unspent amount relating to previous years has also been transferred

to special reserve during the year.

The company has taken office premises under non-cancelable operating lease arrangement. The
future minimum lease payment in respect of such non- cancelable leases as at 31" March 2019

as summarized below

[Amount in Rs.)

Lease Payments

Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Total Lease payment for the year (Recognised in
statement of Income and Expenditure).

77,63,754

75,32,470

Minimum lease payments

Mot later than 1 year

77,63,754

75,32,470

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years

Wil

Later than 5 years

Nil

MSME disclosure ( on the basis of information provided by vendors and available on company's

records)

S.No.

Particulars

As at 31st
March, 2019

As at 31st
March, 2018

{a)

the principal amount and the interest due therean {to be shown
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each
accounting year;

-principal amount

63,842

-interest due

(b}

the amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of tha
Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along
with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the
appointed day during each accounting year;

(c)

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under
Micro, Small and Medium Development Act, 2006

(d)

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
£ach accounting year; and

(e)

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance
of a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

30,

Financial Instrument
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

A. Financial instru
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Particulars Fair March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018 April 1, 2017

Value

Hierarch

¥

2} Fv Amortised Fv 12} Amortised Fv FV Amaortised Cost
TPL TQC Cost (Rs) TPL | TOCI Cost [Rs) TPL TOCH [Rs)

Financial Assets
Mon-current Assets
~Other Financial Level 3
Absats 10,63,76,367 2.62,95,686 7.42,71,417
Current Assets
-Trade Receivables Level 3 6,19,30,681 5,10,38,551 1,87,67,380
<Cash and cash Level 3
Equivalents 27.97.52,854 17,86,95000 2,65,83,008
-Bank Balances other | Level 3
than i) above 2,19,57,70.238 2,35,59, 21,759 2,31,99,78,785
-Other Financial Level 3
Ascats 7,44, E7,105 5,87,84,963 5,88,35.340
TOTAL 3,31,82,97,245 2,67,02,36,050 2,49,84,35,930
Financial Liabilities
Mon-current
Liabllities [
-Other financial
Liabilities Level 3 | 16,61,165 24,08.266 30,399,588
Current Liabilities |
-Trade payables |

Level 3 5,50,48,108 B,12,61,336 1,83,81,477
-Other financial
Liablities Level 3 | 1,1585,777 3,75.59.347 4,46,60,453
TOTAL | B,83,05,050 12,16,28,949 4,41,41,558

Fair value hierarchy

The table shown above analyses financial instrurments carried at fair value, by valuation method.
The different levels have been defined below:

Level 1

This Includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2

The fair value of financlal instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined
using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates.

Level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. There are no transfers between level 1, level 2 and leval 2
during the year.
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3l

Valuation technique used to determine fair value:

Specific valuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:

-The use of quoted market prices

-The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
trade receivables, short term loans, current financial assets, trade payables, current financial
liabilities and borrowings approximate their carrying amount.

-The fair values for assets & liabllities were based on their carrying values.

F VES AND POLICIE

Financial risk factors

The Company is exposed to various financial risks i.e. credit risk and risk of liguidity. These risks
are inherent and integral aspect of any business. The primary focus of the Risk Management
Policy Is to foresee the unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimize potential
adverse effects on its financial performance.

i) Credit risk
The Company evaluates the customer credentials carefully from trade sources before
extending credit terms and credit terms are extended to only financially sound
customers, The Company secures adequate advance from its customers whenever
necessary and hence risk of bad debt is limited. In relation to Exchange services,
company reviews the business with all customers on regular intervals with a right to
block all exchange related services, which gives additional assurance for better recovery,
Ageing Analysis of Trade Receivables

Ageing As At March 31,2019 As At March 31,2018 _As At April 1, 2017
Not due 74,771,743 2,06,52,225 27,29,173
Upto Six months 1,61,50,153 68,328,681 67,84,503
Six to Twelve Months 1,09,80,966 84,65,958 36,02,662
Above Twelve Months 2,73,27.819 1,40,81,687 56,51,042

Gross Carrying Amount  6,19,30,681 5,10,38,551 1,87,67,380
Expected Credited Losses . . .
Expected Provision for - -

Doubtful Debts

Net Carrying amount 6,19,30,681 5,10,38,551 1,87,67,380 |

ii) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Company will not be able to meet its present and future
cash and collateral obligations. The risk management action focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and tries to minimise adverse effects.The
Company’s approach is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity
to meet its liabilities when due and company monitors rolling forecasts of its liquidity
requirements.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilities as of March 31, 2019: /‘

| \J
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32.

Particulars Carrying Less than
Amount 1 year 1-5 year Total
Trade payables 5,50.48,108 5,50,48,108 5,50,48,108
Other financial liabllities -
Current (Exclusive of Current Maturities) 3,15,95,777 3,15,95,777 3,15,95,777
Other financial liabilities - Non-Current 16,61,165 16,861,165 16,61,165

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial
liabilities as of March 31, 2018;

Particulars Carrying Less than
Amount 1 year 1-5 year Total
Trade payables 8.12,61.336 8.12.61,336 B.12,61.336
Other financial labilities -
Current (Exclusive of Current Maturities) 3,79,59347 3,78.59347 3,79,59347
Other financial liabilities - Non-Current 24,08,266 24,08,266 24,008,266

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of significant financial
liabitities as of April 1, 2017:

Particulars Carrying Less than

Amount 1 year 1-5 year Total
Trade payables 1,83,81 477 1,83,81,477 1,83,81,477
Other financial liabilities —
Current (Exclusive of Current Maturities)  2,26,60,493 2,26,60,453 2,26,60,493
Other financial liabilities - Non-Current 30,99,588 30,599,588 30,949,588
FIRST TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS
As stated in Note 1(ll), these are the Company's first financial statements prepared in
accordance with Ind AS.
The accounting policies set out in Note 1{lll) have been applied in preparing the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2019, the comparative information presented in these
financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 and in the preparation of an opening
Ind AS statement of financial position at April 01 2017 (the Company’s date of transition). In
preparing its opening Ind AS statement of financial position, the Company has adjusted amounts
reported previously in financial statements prepared In accordance with Indian GAAP {previous
GAAP). An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company's financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following
tables and the notes that accompany the tables.
Exemptions and exceptions availed
Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions
applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

A) Ind AS optional exemptions ‘\
)
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Property, plant and equipment B Intangible assets

Ind A5 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying value for
all of its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at
the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as jts
deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-
commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used for intangible assets covered
by Ind AS 38 Intangible Assets.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to measure all of its property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets at their previous GAAP carrying value.

B) Ind AS mandatory exceptions

ii)

Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall
be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP
(after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is
objective evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2017 are consistent with the estimates as at the same
date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Company made estimation that were
consistent in conformity with previous GAAP.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of
facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Accordingly the Company
has determined the classification of Financial Assets based on the facts and
circumstances exist as on the date of transition

€} Reconciliation of Equity
Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile eguity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for
prior periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.

Particulars Noe
As ot March 31, 2018 As at April 01, 2017
No. IGAAP*  Adjustment IND AS IGAAP*  Adjustment IND A5 |
I ASSETS |
1. Non Current Assets
. Property, Plant & Equipment 5,098,496 . 4,098,496 15,183,746 15,183,746
b Other Intangible Assets 21,750 . 21,790 200,454 200,454
€ Financial Assels
[} Othier Financial Ascets b | 26,566,960 {631,283 25,295 6BE 75,197 08% 11.125,672) T4,271.417
| A Non Current Tax Assets [Met) 445 957,262 - 445,997 262 384,731,335 384,731,335
&, Dther Non Current Assets 2 501,947 067 262,637 502,208,704 1,827,399 548,000 3,476,489
TOTAL NOM CURRENT ASSETS 884,031,584 [408.5645) 883,622,938 478,340,023 {#Tﬁml A77.BE3 441

.'r "
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2. Current Assets

a. Financial Assets

| Trade Receivables 51,038 551 51,038,551 18,603,599 163,781 18,767,380
i Cash andcash Equivalents 178,655,090 178,655,090 26,583,008 26,583,008
1. Bank Balances other than ii) 2,355,921,.759 2,355,921 759 2,319,978 785 2,315 978, 78S
I, Other Finandal Assets CR 24 963 58,284 9563 56,460,441 2,374 894 58 435340
b, Dther Current Assets 58,449,420 386,454 58,835 874 107,365,928 45 228 107,711,156
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,702,389, 783 386,453 1,70L.776, 237 2,528,891.761 2983908  2.531,875,665
TOTAL ASSETS 3,686,421,367 (22,192) 3,686,399,175 3,007,231,784 2,507,326  3,009,739,110
1. CAPITAL FUND AND LIABILITIES
A Capital Fund
&, Capitn! Fund 21,919,293 741 G, 087,657 2,925.379,808 2,368,099, 737 3245382 2,371,345 110
TOTAL CAPTAL FUND 2.818,232.241 6,087,657 2,835 379 898 2,368,099,737 3,245382 2,371,345.119
B Liahilities
1. Non Current Ushilitkes
& Financial Lishilities
L. Other Financial Liabilites 2,884,997 {476,731) 2,408,265 3,846,661 {ra1.073) 3,099 588
b. Other Men Current Lisbilities 417,228,153 438010 217,667,178 138,954 587 634,118 139,588 735
& Provisions 500,408 [451,286) 409,122 1,294,154 (B4, 126) 1,449 968
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 221,013,564 (528.998) 220,484,566 145,095,442 [957,161) 144,138,281
2. Current Liabilities
&, Finmnclal Lishilithes
I, Trade Payables
Duen of Micra Enterprises
&nd Small Enterprises i
Duees of Creditors Other
than Micio Enterprises and
Small Enterprises 81,261,336 81,261,336 18381477 18381477
i Other Financial Liabilities 37,959,347 37,958,347 22,176,388 484,105 22660493
b. Other Currant Linbilitkss 425,801,233 {5580, 852) 431,230,372 453,771,887 195172 452,957,000
€ Provisions 93,656 93,856 706,853 {480,122) 246,731
TOTAL CURRENT LIABLITIES 546,115.562 {5,580,855) 540,534,711 494,036,605 219,106 494,255,710
TOTAL CAPITAL FUND AND LIABILITIES 3,686.421,367 (22,182} 3,686,399.175 3,007,231,784 1507326 13,009,739,110

*The previous GAAP figures have been reciassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this

nobe,
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E Reconciilation of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2018
I

Particulan Mot IGaap* Adjustments IND AS
No.
I fevenue from Dperations . 671,925.511 5,775,973 677,701,485
Il Other Income 12 179,163,220 {2,213,855) 126,969,365
I Total Revenue (1) 801,108 731 BO4,670,850
Operational Expenses 152,001,485 - 152,001 485
Employves benefit expense A 20,291,623 374,967 20,666,580
Depreciation and amontisation expanse 4,856,625 4,856 625
Orther expenses o 35,771,483 701,569 6,471 063
Total expenses | 1V) 213,011,226 1,076,536 214,087,762 |
¥ Surplus before tax (- 588,097,504 590,583,088
¥Vl Tax expense «
Vil Surplus for the period (V-V1} 58,097,504 2,485,583 590,583,088
Will  Other Comprahansive Income [Net of Tax) .
items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurement Gain or (Loss) on Defined Benefit Plans 3 LT ELTR
Income Tax on the above [tem
Total Other Comprehensive Incomz | Net of Tax) 356,691 356,691
X Total Comprehemsive income for the pedod (VI [Comprising
profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive income for the pariod)
SEE,097,504 2,842,274 580,939,779

*The previous GAAR figures have been reclassified to conform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purposes of this

note.

Recnciliation of Capital Fund:

PARTICULARS March 31, 2018 April 01, 2017

Tatal Capltal Fund under Previous GAAP (A) 2,919,292,241 2,368,0049,737
_Total Adjustment to Capital Fund(a) 6,087 657 3,245,382
Total Capital Fund under Ind AS [A+8) 2.925,379,898 2,371,345,118

o) Notes to first-time adoption:

1. Finandial Instruments:;

al Non-current Security deposits have been valued at fair value using market rate of
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33.

b} Non-current financial Liability have been valued at fair value using market rate of

interest.

2. The period income and expenses have been recognized in their respective year and
pertaining assets and liabilities reclassified.

3. Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations:

Under Ind AS, remeasurement |.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets,
excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognized in other comprehensive income Instead of profit or loss. Under the previous GAAP,
these remeasurement were forming part of the profit or loss for the year.

ELATE DISCLOSUR

Related party disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard -24 s as below:

I.N lated Pa
relationship

{a) Chandra Industrial Co.
Private Limited

Enterprise over which key management personnel (Director) is
having significant influence.

{b) CJ Online

Enterprise over which key management persannel (Proprietor) is
having significant influence.

{c) €l Online Private Limited

Enterprise over which key management persaonnel (Director) is
having significant influence.

(d}Madhav Cement Private
Limited

Enterprise over which key management personnel [Director) is
having significant influence.

(e) Ishan Netcom Private
Limited

Enterprise aver which key management persannel (Director) is
having significant influence.

{f} Ishan Netsol Private
Limited

Enterprise over which key management personnel (Director) is
having significant influence.

(g) ishan Infotech Limited

Enterprise over which key management personnel {Directar] is
having significant influence.

Il. The following transactions were carried out with related parties in the ordinary course of

business:

Particulars

Enterprise over which key management
personnel is having significant influence (Refer 1 )

2018-19 2017-18
|a) Sales (Revenue from NIR operations({From
Affiliates)) £,35,806 -
[b) Outstanding at the end of Financial year
Receivable 25,200 25,200
Payable : L
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NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA
CIN-U72900DL2003NPL120999

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31" March 2019

34. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ rearranged, wherever considered necessary to
conform to current year's classification.

As per attached Report of even date

Forand on behalf of board of directors for § S Kothari Mehta & Company
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 000756N

WOl —~

“Sanjay Goel ip'Kumar Barman Naveen Aggarwal
Director Director Partner
DIN: 08023127 DIN: 07322268 Membership No. 094380
Place : New Delhi d

Date : 30-09-2019
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S G ENERAL
BUSINESS PROFILE

I Registration Details,
Registration No.  U[ 7] 29700 DI LI 2[0] 0] I[N PTL]IT2T0T5]3] 8] State code [5[5]

311] o131 [0 5| Balance Sheet

Date Month Year
L Capital raised during the year (Amount in Rs.).
Public Issue Rights lssue™”
LT T INTUJCT T T ] T T A
Business lssue Private Placement
T D LI T INTTTeT T T3

HE Position of Mobilization und Deplovment of Funds {Ampunt in Rs.),

Total Liabilities
EI4|:|1|ulu!q]3|ﬁ'||

Sources of Funds
Paid-up Capital

N D 5 7 O
Secured Loan
1 0 7 O 5
Application Funds
Net Fixed Assets

[ TiT3T0[s (85 011
Net Current Assets

Total Assets
[4]4TzT7 809361 T]

Reserves Surplus
Blslofo[z (87231
Unsecured Laans

L T T INJTTCL T 1

Investments

T L INJI TR T 177

Deferred Revenue Charges

|:_|a|1|||u§1!||3i9;ﬂ_]

Avcumuluted Losses

INJULIL]T T 17

IV, Performance of Company (Amount in Rs.)

Tumover
ERENCNENCANREREN D)
lncome/Expenditure before tax

o]

6 [8]TT7[2T9Ta]2

[7] []0]

(Please tick appropriate box +for Profit, -Tor Lioas)

Enrning per Share in Rs.
Y I . 7N T I

L0 ] IN[I T T ]

Tuortal Expenditure*
(2488758 6 8]0

Income/Expenditure afler tax
[NES N EAFIEIERERER

Dividend rate %

LN A

V. Generic Name of Three Principal Products/Services of Company ias Per Monetary  terms)

L F T | lsem Code No
(ITC Code)
Product - : L
DECH R L1 T] S N ) ) I 0 O 5

National Internet Exchange of India

Regd. Ofi.: 6C 8D, 6E Hansalaya Building
15, Barakhamba Road. New Delhi-110001
Tel +81-11-48202000. Fax +31-11-482020192

" Q- d;p/
gj’ 82

CIN- U72900DL2003NPL 120990

WAAWW NI

wwworegistry in, www irinn. in



ltem Code, Na,

| [ [ 1 [ ] | (ITCCode)

Product - :

Diescription | VR VO s == | L T 1 L L)

Product

Description
i LN T O I ) s L = |
{011 Y O S G o G
AT A T O | | ltem Code No.

- —— (ITC Cade)

Produc

Beksiipie N ) = e 0 Y O
S 5 L A A O 1 ) =
i il T O (O VO O i )

* Note: For ITC code of Products please refer 1o the publication Indian Trade Classification based on
hermanized commodity deseription and coding svstem by Ministry of Commerce, Ditectorste General of
Commercial Imelligence & Statistics, Caleutta — 700 001
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ATTENDANCE SLIP
NATIONAL INTERNET EXCHANGE OF INDIA

ﬁuliﬂ No.:

Name of the Member(s):

| Address of the Member(s):

| We hereby record my/our presence at the Annual General Meeting being held on
Friday, the 20" day of December 2019 at 4-00 pm at Ministry of Communications
and Information Technology. Conference Room 1007, Electronics Niketan, 8. CGO
Complex, Lodi Road, New Delhi —110003.

Signature of the Member/Proxy present

Note:

1. Ordinary & Associate Member / Proxy holder / A representative of the Ordinary
Member wishing to attend the meeting must bring the Attendance Slip, along with
authority letter and ID card duly signed by the Director/ Company secretary in case
of private companies, head of the organization or CEQ/ Company secretary in case
of other organizations, to the meeting and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting
venue.
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REGISTRY

Proxy Form
Form No. MGT-11
[Fursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(32) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]
CIN: U72800DL2003NPL120999
Name of the Company: National Internet Exchange of India
Registered Office: Flat No. 6C, 8D & 6E, 6" Floor, Hansalya building, 15,
Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-110001

Name of the Member(s) : |

Registered Address -
E-mail ID :
Folio No..
DP ID: \ |

- being the member (s) of the above named
company, hereby appaint:

M PRI s s p izt st S s LS g e
Address: .. _._......... i b o e FRE 4 4

SIGNERING.. <. coscseviviiimeriniinmsmseaiiins , or failing him
TR | R

IVAGEEEEY v v i sisiiandinssessnisasiindsniiti
O i e e s
Signature: ...

as mylour Proxy to attend and vote for mefus and on my/our behalf at the Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Friday, the 20" day of December
2019 at 4:00 pm at Ministry of Communications and Information Technology,
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nllM ll?. E-Governance Hall, Electronics Niketan, 8, CGO! B TRY

Lodi Road, New Delhi —=110003 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such

resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.;

1) To receive, consider & adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31,
2019 (including the statement of Income and Expenditure and all the necessary
documents required by law fo be annexed to the Balance sheet) and the Report
of Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.

Special Business:

2) To conduct the Election of Directors among the Ordinary Members of the
Company and declaration of the result.

3) Ratification of the resolution passed by the Board of Directors regarding the
|oining/ leaving of the members of the Company during the year.

Signed this ----- gay of--———--2019

Signature of Member(s): Affix a Revenue Stamp

Signature of Proxy holder:

Notes ;

1. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company atFlat No. 6C, 6D & 8E, 8"
Floor, Hansalya building, 15, Barakhamba Road, New Delhi-110001 not less than
Forty-Eight hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

2. A member shall not be entitled to appoint any other person as his proxy unless
such other person is alse a member of the company.

3. The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such
member from attending in person and voting at the Meeting,
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